The units described in this Offering Memorandum (the "Offering Memorandum") are being offered on a private placement basis in reliance on exemptions from the requirement to prepare and file a prospectus with securities regulatory authorities. This Offering Memorandum constitutes an offering of the units described herein only in those jurisdictions and to those persons where and to whom they may lawfully be offered for sale. This Offering Memorandum is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, a prospectus or an advertisement for a public offering of such units. No securities regulatory authority in Canada has in any way passed upon the merits of the units offered in this Offering Memorandum nor has it reviewed this Offering Memorandum and any representation to the contrary is an offence.

MAJESTIC ASSET MANAGEMENT

MAJESTIC GLOBAL DIVERSIFIED FUND

Series A, F and I Units

OFFERING MEMORANDUM

Dated as of

March 28, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Contents

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING	i
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGY	1
RISK MANAGEMENT	3
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	3
UNITS OF THE FUND	5
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	6
INVESTING IN UNITS OF THE FUND	7
REDEMPTION OF UNITS	8
TRANSFER OF UNITS	9
FEES AND EXPENSES	9
DEALER COMPENSATION	11
DISTRIBUTIONS	11
CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	12
ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT	15
RISK FACTORS	15
REPORTING TO UNITHOLDERS AND MEETINGS OF UNITHOLDERS	21
AMENDMENT OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT	21
AUDITORS	21
TRUSTEE	21
CUSTODIAN	22
ADMINISTRATOR AND REGISTRAR	22
FUTURES BROKERS	22
LEGAL COUNSEL	22
MATERIAL AGREEMENTS	22
STATUTORY AND CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS OF ACTION	22
DIRECTORY	32

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING

The following is a summary of the terms and conditions of an investment in the Fund (as defined below). This summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information contained in this Offering Memorandum and the information contained in the Fund's Trust Agreement (as defined below). Prospective investors are encouraged to consult their own professional advisors as to the tax and legal consequences of investing in the Fund. Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars.

The Fund

The investment fund offered herein is the MAJESTIC GLOBAL DIVERSIFIED FUND (the "Fund").

The Fund is an open-ended trust established on September 30, 2010 under the laws of the Province of Québec by a trust agreement dated September 30, 2010 (the "Trust Agreement") and amended and restated on May 1, 2014. TSX Trust (the "Trustee") acts as the trustee of the Fund and Majestic Asset Management LLC ("Majestic" or the "Manager") acts as the investment fund manager and investment advisor of the Fund pursuant to the Trust Agreement. SGGG Fund Services Inc. (the "Administrator") acts as the administrator of the Fund. See "Majestic Global Diversified Fund".

Series and Units

Investments in the Fund are represented by trust units of the Fund (the "Units"). The Fund is permitted to have an unlimited number of Series of Units (each a "Series"), having such terms and conditions as the Manager may determine. The number of Units of each Series is unlimited.

The Fund currently has the following three Series of Units:

- (i) **Series A Units**: this Series of Units is offered to accredited investors under the terms of this Offering Memorandum who are not eligible to purchase Series F Units or Series I Units;
- (ii) **Series F Units**: this Series of Units is offered to accredited investors under the terms of this Offering Memorandum who purchase such units through a dealer sponsored fee-for-service or wrap program and who pay an asset-based fee to their dealer;
- (iii) **Series I Units**: this Series of Units is offered to institutional investors at the discretion of the Manager. The Manager will negotiate the terms of purchase of the Series I Units with each investor, including the management fee and the performance fee that will be paid by the Fund in respect of such investor's Series I Units. No sales commission is payable when an investor buys or redeems Series I Units. An investor buying Series I Units must enter into a Series I Unit agreement with the Manager before the investor can buy Series I Units.

If the creation of additional Series of Units of the Fund would adversely affect the pecuniary value of the interest of Unitholders of another Series of the Fund, the Manager will notify the Unitholders of the affected Series and provide them with sufficient time to redeem their Units in the Fund. See "Units of the Fund".

Certain expenses, including management fees, and liabilities of the Fund, as set out in this Offering Memorandum or as determined by the Trustee or the Manager, in their sole discretion, are be attributed exclusively to a particular Series of Units of the Fund ("Series Expenses").

The Offering

Under the terms of this Offering Memorandum, Series A, F and I Units are offered on a continuous basis to "accredited investors" resident in any province of Canada (the "Offering Jurisdictions") pursuant to applicable exemptions from the prospectus requirements contained in the securities legislation in the Offering Jurisdiction. Under no circumstances will the Manager accept a subscription for Units, whether initial or subsequent, if its distribution cannot be made in reliance on any such exemptions.

Any monies received with a rejected order will be promptly refunded to the investor without any interest. See "Investing in Units of the Fund".

Price

Series A, F and I Units are offered at the Series Net Asset Value per Unit (as defined below) calculated as of the applicable Valuation Date (as defined below). Fractional Units will be issued up to three decimal points.

Investment Objective and Strategy

Investment Objective

The Fund's investment objective is to provide investors with returns that are non-correlated to traditional asset classes such as equities, real estate and bonds, while preserving capital during unfavorable market conditions.

Investment Strategy

Majestic uses a combination of quantitative systematic trading strategies that have a low correlation with each other. The Fund covers global commodity markets such as grains, metals, energy products, soft commodities, meat complexes, currencies, interest rate instruments and stock indices. See "Investment Objective and Strategy – Investment Strategy".

Authorized Investments

The Fund may only invest in specified securities. See "Investment Objective and Strategy – Authorized Investments".

Risk Management

Investment guidelines have been established for the Fund to manage risk. See "Risk Management".

The Trustee

TSX TRUST is the Trustee of the Fund. See "Management of the Fund – The Trustee".

The Manager

Majestic is the investment fund manager and investment advisor of the Fund. It is responsible for the day-to-day business of the Fund as well as the management of the Fund's investment portfolio. The Manager is registered with the Autorité des marchés financiers ("AMF") as an exempt market dealer, portfolio manager and investment fund manager, and as a Commodity Trading Manager with the Ontario Securities Commission under the Commodity Futures Act. Majestic carries out its advisory activities from Montreal, Quebec. The Manager is a Delaware Limited Liability Company and is registered under the *Commodity Exchange Act* (U.S.) as a Commodity Trading Advisor ("CTA") since October 26, 2006. Majestic is a member of the National Futures Association, the industry-wide, self-regulatory organization of the United States futures industry. See "Management of the Fund - The Manager".

Valuation

The Fund's net asset value (the "Net Asset Value") is calculated as the value of the Fund's assets, less its liabilities, computed on a particular date in accordance with the Fund's Trust Agreement. The Administrator will calculate the Net Asset Value of the Fund as of every Thursday of each week (or, if Thursday is not a Business Day, the next Business Day), December 31 of each year, and such other Business Day(s) as the Manager

may determine (each, a "Valuation Date"), at 6:00 pm. (Eastern time) (the "Valuation Time"). In addition, for the purpose of calculating the Performance Fees (as defined below), the Administrator will calculate the Net Asset Value of the Fund as of the last Business Day of every calendar quarter (the "Performance Fee Date"). For the purpose of this Offering Memorandum, a "Business Day" is a day on which the main branch of the Royal Bank of Canada in Toronto, Ontario is open for business.

The Administrator will also calculate on each Valuation Date and Performance Fee Date, the Net Asset Value of the Fund attributable to each Series of Units of the Fund (the "Series Net Asset Value") and the Net Asset Value per Unit for each Series of Units of the Fund (the "Series Net Asset Value per Unit"). See "Determination of Net Asset Value".

Purchase of Units

Investors may be admitted to the Fund and purchase Series A Units, Series F Units and Series I Units or may acquire additional Units on a weekly basis on each Valuation Date. The Units are being offered using the mutual fund order entry system FundSERV.

Funds in respect of any subscription will be payable by investors at the time of the subscription. Investors who wish to make an initial subscription for Units of the Fund may do so by delivering a subscription application (in such form as the Manager may approve from time to time) to the Manager, through Dealers (as defined below) or other persons permitted by applicable securities laws to sell Units, accompanied by wire transferred funds in an amount equal to the purchase price through the FundSERV network. Additional subscriptions for Units of the Fund must be made by delivering a request to that effect through the FundSERV network.

Units will be offered at the Series Net Asset Value per Unit calculated as of the applicable Valuation Date. The Valuation Date used for subscriptions that are received by the Manager at least three (3) Business Days prior to the Valuation Date and accepted by the Manager by 3:00 pm on the Business Day preceding that Valuation Date, will be the Valuation Date for that week. Subscriptions that are received or accepted by the Manager after such days will be made as of the following Valuation Date. All subscriptions for Units are to be forwarded by Dealers, without charge, to the Manager or delivered through the FundSERV network, as applicable, the same day that they are received. See "Investing in Units of the Fund - Purchase of Units".

Minimum Investment

The minimum initial investment in the Fund is \$25,000 for any Series for an investor who is an "accredited investor" as described in applicable securities legislation. Subsequent investments are subject to an additional minimum investment of \$1,000, subject to applicable securities legislation. An investor who purchases as an "accredited investor" is required to notify the Manager if such investor's status changes. See "Investing in Units of the Fund - Minimum Initial and Subsequent Investments".

Redemptions

Units may be surrendered to the Manager for redemption by entering a request for redemption on the FundSERV network at least one Business Day prior to the Valuation Date on which Units are to be redeemed (the "Redemption Date"). Under certain circumstances, the Manager is entitled to suspend or restrict rights of redemption. See "Redemption of Units".

Short-Term Trading Deduction

In order to protect the interest of the majority of Unitholders in the Fund and to discourage short-term trading in the Fund, Unitholders may be subject to a short-term trading deduction. If a Unitholder redeems Units of the Fund within 120 days of purchasing such Units, the Fund may deduct and retain, for the benefit of the remaining Unitholders in the Fund, five percent (5%) of the Series Net Asset Value of the Units being redeemed.

Transfer of Units

No transfers of Units of the Fund may be made other than by operation of law or with the consent of the Manager. Units will also be subject to certain resale restrictions under

applicable securities laws. See "Transfer of Units".

Expenses

The Fund will pay for all routine and customary expenses relating to the Fund's operation, including administrative fees, registrar and transfer agency fees and expenses, trustee fees (if any), custodian fees, auditing, legal and accounting fees, communication expenses, printing and mailing expenses, all costs and expenses associated with the sale or redemption of Units, including securities filing fees (if any) and dealer servicing costs (other than dealer servicing commissions referred to below, which are at the expense of the Manager), expenses relating to providing financial and other reports to Unitholders and convening and conducting meetings of Unitholders, all taxes, assessments or other governmental charges levied against the Fund, interest expenses and all investment expenses relating to the investments made on behalf of the Fund and all expenses incurred by the various service providers of the Fund when such expenses relate to the affairs of the Fund. In addition, the Fund will pay for expenses associated with ongoing investor relations and education relating to the Fund. Expenses in connection with the initial organization of the Fund and the initial offering of Units are expected to be amortized over a period of five years. See "Fees and Expenses - Expenses".

Management Fees

For providing their services to the Fund, the Manager receives monthly management fees (the "Management Fees") from the Fund. The Management Fees are, for each Series, Series Expenses attributable to that Series. In the case of Series I Units, the Management Fees are negotiated with each investor and are calculated at the Unit level.

Units of the Series, other than Series I Units, are charged annual Management Fees equal to the following percentages of the Series Net Asset Value of the said Series of the Fund, calculated and accrued on each Valuation Date and payable monthly:

Series A	Series F
2.00%	1.00%

Management fees are subject to applicable taxes, including QST (which may be refunded under certain circumstances) and GST or HST.

Performance Fees

The Manager also receives performance fees (the "Performance Fees") from the Fund attributable to each Series A Unit and Series F Unit. In the case of Series I Units, Performance Fees, if any, are negotiated with each investor.

Performance Fees are calculated and accrue weekly and are paid on the Performance Fee Dates and on redemption of Units. Performance Fees are calculated at the Unit level and, in respect of Series A Units and Series F Units, will equal the aggregate of 20% of the positive amount obtained, if any, when the High Water Mark (as defined below) of each Unit is subtracted from the Series Net Asset Value per Unit of the Unit on the date of payment (if such difference in respect of a Unit is negative then the Performance Fee payable in respect of such Unit for the applicable Performance Fee Date shall be zero – the Performance Fee payable in respect of a Unit shall not be affected in any way by the performance of any other Unit). For this purpose, "High Water Mark" for a Unit means, initially, its subscription price and thereafter will be adjusted from time to time to equal its Series Net Asset Value per Unit immediately following the payment of a Performance Fee to the Manager in respect of such Unit. The High Water Mark does not reset. This ensures that any decline in the Series Net Asset Value per Unit has to be recouped before Performance Fees will be charged in respect of such Unit in any subsequent period.

Performance fees are subject to applicable taxes, including QST (which may be refunded under certain circumstances) and GST or HST. See "Fees and Expenses - Performance Fees".

Dealer Compensation

Registered dealers ("**Dealers**") who distribute Units may be paid a sales commission and servicing fees. See "*Dealer Compensation*".

Distributions

The Fund intends to distribute sufficient net income (including net realized capital gains, if any) to Unitholders in each calendar year to ensure that the Fund is not liable for income tax under Part I of the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) (the "Tax Act") other than alternative minimum tax, after taking into account any loss carry forwards. All distributions (other than Special Distributions described in "Fees and Expenses") will be made on a pro rata basis within each Series to each registered Unitholder determined as of the Valuation Time (prior to any subscriptions or redemptions) on the applicable Valuation Date. The Trustee will distribute net income and net realized capital gains of the Fund, if any, on an annual basis, on the last Valuation Date in each taxation year, and on such other dates as deemed appropriate by the Administrator. Distributions will be reinvested in Units of the Fund. See "Distributions".

Tax Consequences

A prospective Unitholder should consider carefully all of the potential tax consequences of an investment in the Units and should consult with their tax advisor before subscribing for Units. For a discussion of certain income tax consequences of this investment, see "Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations".

Eligibility for Investment

Provided the Fund is a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act, at all relevant times, Units of the Fund will be qualified investments under the Tax Act and the regulations thereunder for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement income funds, deferred profit sharing plans, registered education savings plans, registered disability savings plans or tax-free savings accounts. Holders of tax-free savings accounts, registered retirement savings plans or registered retirement income funds should consult with their own tax advisors as to whether Units would be a prohibited investment under the Tax Act in their particular circumstances.

Risk Factors

The Fund is subject to various risk factors. See "Risk Factors".

Fiscal Year

The Fund's fiscal year will end on December 31 of each year.

Reports

Unitholders will be sent audited annual financial statements within 90 days of year end and unaudited semi-annual financial statements within 60 days of June 30, or as otherwise required by law. Additional interim reporting to Unitholders will be at the discretion of the Manager. The Fund may enter into other agreements with certain Unitholders, which may entitle such Unitholders to receive additional reporting. Unitholders will receive the applicable required tax form(s) within the time required by applicable law to assist Unitholders in making the necessary tax filings.

MAJESTIC GLOBAL DIVERSIFIED FUND

The investment fund offered herein is the Majestic Global Diversified Fund (the "Fund").

The Fund is an open-ended trust established on September 30, 2010 under the laws of the Province of Québec by a trust agreement dated September 30, 2010 (the "Trust Agreement") and amended and restated on May 1, 2014. TSX Trust (the "Trustee") acts as the trustee of the Fund and Majestic Asset Management LLC ("Majestic" or the "Manager") acts as the investment fund manager and investment advisor of the Fund pursuant to the Trust Agreement. The other service providers to the Fund include SGGG Fund Services Inc., who acts as the administrator (the "Administrator") and registrar (the "Registrar") of the Fund, and Société Générale Capital Canada Inc who acts as custodian (the "Custodian") and futures broker of the Fund.

The office of the Fund is located at the office of the Manager, being 300 St-Sacrement Street, Suite 320, Montreal, Quebec, H2Y 1X4.

The description of provisions of the Trust Agreement contained herein is subject to and qualified in its entirety by the Trust Agreement.

Investments in the Fund are represented by trust units of a series of the Fund (the "Units"). The Fund is permitted to have an unlimited number of series of Units (each, a "Series"), having such terms and conditions as the Manager may determine. Each Unit of a Series represents an undivided interest in the net assets of the Fund attributable to that Series of Units. The number of Units of each series is unlimited.

Three Series of Units of the Fund are offered under this Offering Memorandum:

- (i) **Series A Units**: this Series of Units is offered to accredited investors under the terms of this Offering Memorandum who are not eligible to purchase Series F Units or Series I Units;
- (ii) **Series F Units**: this Series of Units is offered to accredited investors under the terms of this Offering Memorandum who purchase such units through a dealer sponsored fee-for-service or wrap program and who pay an asset-based fee to their dealer;
- (iii) **Series I Units**: this Series of Units is offered to institutional investors at the discretion of the Manager will negotiate the terms of purchase of the Series I Units with each investor, including the management fee and the performance fee that will be paid by the Fund in respect of such investor's Series I Units. No sales commission is payable when an investor buys or redeems Series I Units. An investor buying Series I Units must enter into a Series I Unit agreement with the Manager before the investor can buy Series I Units.

Additional Series of Units may be offered in the future without notice to, approval of existing holders of Units of the Fund ("Unitholders").

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGY

Investment Objective

The Fund's investment objective is to provide investors with returns that are non-correlated to traditional asset classes such as equities, real estate and bonds, while preserving capital during unfavorable market conditions.

Investment Strategy

Majestic uses a combination of quantitative systematic trading strategies that have a low correlation with each other. The Fund covers global commodity markets such as grains, metals, energy products, soft commodities, meat complexes, currencies, interest rate instruments and stock indices.

DM_MTL/285293.00004/2431667.8A

The Fund's trading approach is highly robust and uses quantitative risk management rules, as well as diversification through trading different systems in various futures markets. A robust method is a method that remains valid over an extended period of time, essentially weathering the many economic cycles and market phases. Highly robust techniques are based on very general, successful trading principles and as such are non-optimized and rarely exactly fit to any specific market situation. Futures trading is a zero-sum game: for every winner there is a loser. There are two categories of market players in the futures markets: Speculators and Commercial Hedgers. Speculators take on price risk in futures markets with the hope of achieving profits. Commercial hedgers trade futures primarily to transfer risk and receive insurance against adverse price moves in the actual commodities or financial products that they deal with in their business. Economic benefits to the hedger cannot possibly be obtained for free and hedgers must therefore be net losers in futures over the long run, paying a "risk premium" for the insurance they receive. The Fund's strategy is based on attempting to capture hedgers' risk premium as well as speculator losses. Hedgers tend to sell when prices are strong and buy when prices are weak. By acting in opposition to this, the Fund buys strength and sells weakness, actually losing money on the majority of trades. The winning trades, less frequent but larger on average, occur when prices strengthen or weaken well beyond expectations, forming trends. By following its trading approaches in a consistent, disciplined manner, the Manager believes that the trading model will achieve a positive mathematical edge over the long run in the market place. This is based on the premise that markets are fractal and that markets should intermittently exhibit unpredictable trending behaviour over multiple time scales. The Fund attempts to accomplish this by taking both long and short positions in various futures markets.

Authorized Investments

Only the investments stipulated below are permitted for the Fund:

Money Market and Cash

Permitted investments in this category consist of cash (in any currency), demand deposits, treasury bills, short-term notes, bonds, banker's acceptances, government paper, term deposits, guaranteed investment certificates or other financial instruments issued by chartered banks, and commercial paper.

Derivative Products

Permitted investments in this category consists of futures, forwards, swaps, options on futures, forwards, swaps and currencies.

Currencies

The Fund may also carry out spot transactions in currencies on foreign exchange markets.

Investment Funds

The Fund may also invest in any investment fund managed by the Manager that primarily invests in the above investments.

Investment Restrictions and Other Conditions

The investment restrictions that the Manager must follow in investing the assets and property of the Fund, and other conditions that the Fund must meet, are as follows:

- (i) the Fund shall not take delivery of any physical commodities underlying any futures contract;
- (ii) the Fund will not commit more than forty percent (40%) of its total assets as margin in establishing derivatives positions, except when part of a hedged position;
- (iii) the Fund will not make or retain an investment in another partnership if any interest in that partnership is a "tax shelter investment" for purposes of the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) (the "**Tax Act**"); and
- (iv) the Fund will not undertake any investment that would cause it to lose its status as a "mutual fund trust" for the purposes of the Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management

Investment guidelines have been established for the Fund to manage risk. The Manager applies strict risk management procedures that take into account the price, size, volatility, liquidity, and inter-relationship of the traded futures markets. This is designed to maximize a portfolio's return while diminishing its volatility. On the portfolio level, risk exposure is monitored on an intra-day basis to achieve a desirable standard deviation of daily and monthly returns. In the event of extended drawdowns in account equity, the Manager reduces market exposure by scaling back the overall leverage of every futures position. Risk models take into account the portfolio's ongoing risk exposure and market liquidity when initiating new positions. The models have a predetermined risk per trade, and risk per market sector. They also adjust positions according to the market's volatility so that every trade in the portfolio has equal opportunity of achieving profits. The trading model is designed to withstand significant price shocks and is built to preserve capital during volatile periods. Our money management models simultaneously attempt to maintain a balanced, diversified, and measured risk exposure for the Fund.

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

The Trustee

TSX TRUST acts as the trustee of the Fund pursuant to the Trust Agreement. The Trustee has those powers and responsibilities in respect of the Fund as described in the Trust Agreement. The Trustee is required to exercise its powers and discharge the duties of its office honestly and in good faith and in connection therewith to exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent Canadian trust company would exercise in comparable circumstances.

The Manager may remove the Trustee and appoint a successor trustee from time to time on 60 days' written notice to the Trustee and the Unitholders. The Trustee may resign upon 90 days' written notice to the Manager and the Unitholders. If no successor Trustee is appointed, the Fund will be terminated.

Under the terms of the Trust Agreement, the Trustee benefits from a general disclaimer of liability and has a right of indemnification from the Fund for any claims or liabilities arising out of the execution of its duties as trustee, except in cases of gross negligence, misfeasance or wilful misconduct on the part of the Trustee or breach of its standard of care.

The Manager

The Manager is responsible for the day-to-day business of the Fund as well as the management of the Fund's investment portfolio.

Majestic is a Montreal-based quantitative alternative asset manager that specializes in managing institutional and individual assets in a broad spectrum of global futures markets that consist of currency, treasury debt, equity, energy, metal, agricultural and soft commodity futures. The Manager focuses on long-term price trends that generally last three months or longer, with the objective of realizing superior absolute and risk-adjusted returns that are uncorrelated to equity and fixed income returns.

Majestic is a Limited Liability Company formed under Delaware law and has been registered under the *Commodity Exchange Act* (US) as a Commodity Trading Advisor (CTA) since October 26, 2006. The Manager is a member of the National Futures Association, the industry-wide, self-regulatory organization for the United States futures industry. The Manager is registered with the AMF as an exempt marker dealer, portfolio manager and investment fund. Majestic is also registered as a Commodity Trading Manager with the Ontario Securities Commission under the Commodity Futures Act.

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Manager has authority to manage the business and affairs of the Fund and has authority to bind the Fund. The Manager has the power to appoint one or more investment advisors to manage the Fund's property and assets. Among its other powers, the Manager may establish the Fund's operating expense budgets and authorize the payment of operating expenses. The Manager may delegate any of its powers to third parties where, in the discretion of the Manager, it would be in the best interests of the Fund to do so.

The Manager is required to exercise its powers and discharge the duties of its office honestly, in good faith, and in the best interests of the Fund and in connection therewith must exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonable prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances.

The Manager may resign upon 90 days' written notice to the Trustee and the Unitholders of the Fund, or such other notice period of not less then 30 days that may be agreed upon between the Manager and the Trustee. The Manager may appoint a successor manager. If no successor manager is appointed, the Fund will be terminated. The Fund may also be terminated following (i) a material default by the Manager of its obligations under the Trust Agreement which is not cured in due course; (ii) the Manager having been declared bankrupt or insolvent or having entered into liquidation or winding-up; or (iii) the assets of the Manager having become subject to seizure or confiscation by any public or governmental authority.

Under the terms of the Trust Agreement, the Manager benefits from a general disclaimer of liability and has a right of indemnification from the Fund for any claims or liabilities arising out of the execution of its duties under the Trust Agreement, except in cases of negligence, misfeasance or wilful misconduct on the part of the Manager or breach of its standard of care.

The services of the Manager under the Trust Agreement are not exclusive to the Fund, and nothing in the Trust Agreement will prevent the Manager, or any affiliate thereof, from providing similar services to other investment funds and other clients (irrespective of whether their investment objectives and policies are similar to those of the Fund) or from engaging in other activities.

Senior Officers of the Manager

The following individuals are the senior officers of the Manager:

David Bilodeau, DMS, FCSI Co-Chief Executive Officer & Chief Investment Officer

David Bilodeau is Co-Founder, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer of Majestic Asset Management. He oversees all portfolio management and trading at Majestic and leads the firm's business development. Mr. Bilodeau earned a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from HEC University and began his career working at Refco Canada Inc. and Man Financial Canada Co., now known as MF Global. He subsequently became a Fellow of the Canadian Securities Institute, which earned him the FCSI designation. As an FCSI, Mr. Bilodeau belongs to an elite group of professionals of the financial services industry who are instantly recognized as trusted leaders in their field and respected by their clients, employers and investors alike. Furthermore, he holds the Derivatives Market Specialist designation (DMS), a professional accreditation that few hold in Canada. Mr. Bilodeau has over 16 years of trading experience on stocks, options and futures contracts.

Denis Paquette, FRM, CAIA, DMS Co-Chief Executive Officer, Chief Compliance Officer and Chief Operating Officer

Denis Paquette is Co-Founder, Co-Chief Executive Officer, Chief Compliance Officer and Chief Operating Officer of Majestic Asset Management. He is responsible for the research and development of trading strategies and oversees the firm's operations, as well risk management policies and procedures. Mr. Paquette studied in science at McGill University. He has significant experience in the derivatives markets with over ten years of futures trading experience. Early in his trading career, he worked on the floor of the Montreal Stock Exchange as an assistant futures trader. Over the year trading derivatives, he became significantly involved in the development of quantitative trading strategies by applying what he had learned from studying in science. Mr. Paquette is a Certified Financial Risk Manager (FRM), and a member of the Global Association of Risk Professionals (GARP). He also holds the professional designation of Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst (CAIA) and is a member of the CAIA Association. In addition, he is a Derivatives Market Specialist (DMS), a designation earned from the Canadian Securities Institute.

Conflicts of Interest

The services of the Manager and its respective officers, directors and affiliates are not exclusive to the Fund. The Manager and any of its respective affiliates and associates may, at any time, engage in the promotion, management or investment management of any other fund or trust and provide similar services to other investment funds and other clients and engage in other activities. Investment decisions for the Fund will be made independently of those made for other clients and independently of investments of the Manager. On occasion, however, the Manager may make the same investment for the Fund and for one or more of its other clients. If the Fund and one or more of the other clients of the Manager are engaged in the purchase or sale of the same security, the transactions will be effected on an equitable basis. The Manager has adopted a conflict of interest policy to address and minimize potential conflicts of interest. The policy states that the Manager will deal fairly, honestly and in good faith with all clients and not advantage one client over another.

Future investment activities of the Manager, its respective affiliates and its principals, partners, directors, officers and employees, may give rise to additional conflicts of interest.

UNITS OF THE FUND

Investments in the Fund are represented by Units. The Fund is permitted to have an unlimited number of series of Units (each, a "Series"), having such terms and conditions as the Manager may determine. Each Unit of a Series represents an undivided beneficial interest in the net assets of the Fund attributable to that Series of Units. The Manager, in its discretion, determines the number of Series of Units and establishes the attributes of each Series, including investor eligibility, the designation and currency of each Series, the initial closing date for the first issuance of Units of the Series, any minimum initial or subsequent investment thresholds, any minimum redemption amounts or minimum account balances, valuation frequency, fees and expenses of the Series, sales or redemption charges payable in respect of the Series, redemption rights, convertibility among Series and any additional Series specific attributes. If the creation of additional Series of Units of the Fund would adversely affect the pecuniary value of the interest of Unitholders of another Series of the Fund, the Manager will notify the Unitholders of the affected Series and provide them with sufficient time to redeem their Units in the Fund.

The Fund currently has the following three Series of Units:

- (i) **Series A Units**: this Series of Units is offered to accredited investors under the terms of this Offering Memorandum who are not eligible to purchase Series F Units or Series I Units;
- (ii) **Series F Units**: this Series of Units is offered to accredited investors under the terms of this Offering Memorandum who purchase such units through a dealer sponsored fee-for-service or wrap program and who pay an asset-based fee to their dealer;
- (iii) **Series I Units**: this Series of units is offered to institutional investors at the discretion of the Manager. The Manager will negotiate the terms of purchase of the Series I Units with each investor, including the management fee and the performance fee that will be paid by the Fund in respect of such investor's Series I Units. No sales commission is payable when an investor buys or redeems Series I Units. An investor buying Series I Units must enter into a Series I Unit agreement with the Manager before the investor can buy Series I Units.

Certain expenses, including management fees, and liabilities of the Fund, as set out in this Offering Memorandum or as determined by the Trustee or the Manager, in their sole discretion, are attributed exclusively to a particular Series of Units of the Fund ("Series Expenses").

Although the money invested by investors to purchase Units of any Series of the Fund is tracked on a Series by Series basis in the Fund's administration records, the assets of all Series of the Fund will be combined into a single pool to create one portfolio for investment purposes.

The Trust Agreement provides Unitholders with the right to vote in limited circumstances. Where the general nature of the business to be transacted at a Unitholder meeting concerns an issue relevant to all Unitholders of the Fund, Units of all Series of the Fund will be voted together. Where an issue may affect the Unitholders of a particular Series in a manner that

is materially different from another Series, only Unitholders of those Series to which such business is relevant will be entitled to vote and such Units will be voted separately as a Series.

All Units of the same Series are entitled to participate pro rata: (i) in any payments or distributions (other than Special Distributions described in "Fees and Expenses") made by the Fund to the Unitholders of the same Series; and (ii) upon liquidation of the Fund, in any distributions to Unitholders of the same Series of the Series Net Asset Value of the Fund attributable to the Series remaining after satisfaction of outstanding liabilities of such Series.

Units are not transferable, except by operation of law (for example, a death or bankruptcy of a Unitholder) or with the consent of the Manager. To dispose of Units, a Unitholder must have them redeemed.

Fractional Units carry the same rights and are subject to the same conditions as whole Units (other than with respect to voting rights) in the proportion that they bear to a whole Unit. Outstanding Units of any Series may be subdivided or consolidated in the Manager's discretion on 21 days' prior written notice, provided however that no subdivision or consolidation may be made to Units of a Series unless an identical subdivision or consolidation is made to Units of all other Series of the Fund. The Manager may redesignate units of a Series as Units of any other Series based on the applicable Series Net Asset Value (as defined under "Determination of Net Asset Value").

DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The Fund's net asset value (the "Net Asset Value") is calculated as the value of the Fund's assets, less its liabilities, computed on a particular date in accordance with the Fund's Trust Agreement. The Administrator will calculate the Net Asset Value of the Fund as of every Thursday of each week (or, if Thursday is not a Business Day, the next Business Day), December 31 of each year, and such other Business Day(s) as the Manager may determine (each, a "Valuation Date"), at 6:00 pm. (Eastern time) (the "Valuation Time"). In addition, for the purpose of calculating the Performance Fees (as defined under "Fees and Expenses – Performance Fees"), the Administrator will calculate the Net Asset Value of the Fund as of the last Business Day of every calendar quarter (the "Performance Fee Date"). For the purpose of this Offering Memorandum, a "Business Day" is a day on which the main branch of the Royal Bank of Canada in Toronto, Ontario is open for business.

The Administrator will also calculate on each Valuation Date and Performance Fee Date, the Net Asset Value of the Fund attributable to each Series of Units of the Fund (the "Series Net Asset Value") and the Net Asset Value per Unit for each Series of Units of the Fund (the "Series Net Asset Value per Unit"). The Series Net Asset Value will be, for each Series of the Fund, the proportionate share of the Net Asset Value of the Fund attributable to that Series, less the Series Expenses of that Series. The Series Net Asset Value per Unit for the Units of each Series of the Fund will be the quotient obtained by dividing the amount equal to the Series Net Asset Value by the total number of outstanding Units of that Series, including fractions of Units of that Series and adjusting the result to a maximum of three decimal places.

The number of Units, the fair market value of the assets and the amount of the liabilities of the Fund is calculated in such manner as the Administrator in its sole discretion determines from time to time, subject to the following:

- a) the value of any cash on hand, on deposit or on call, prepaid expenses and interest accrued and not yet received, is deemed to be the face amount thereof, unless the Administrator determines that any such deposit or call loan is not worth the face amount thereof, in which event the value thereof is deemed to be such value as the Administrator determines to be the reasonable value thereof;
- b) the value of any bonds, debentures, and other debt obligations are valued by taking the average of the bid and ask prices on a Valuation Date at such times as the Administrator, in its discretion, deems appropriate. Short-term investments including notes and money market instruments are valued at cost plus accrued interest;
- c) the value of any securities, index futures or index options thereon which is listed on any recognized exchange is determined by the closing sale price at the Valuation Time or, if there is no sale price, the average between the closing bid and the closing asked price on the day on which the Net Asset Value of the Fund is being determined, all as reported by any report in common use or authorized as official by a recognized stock exchange; provided that if such stock exchange is not open for trading on that date, then on the last previous date on which such stock exchange was open for trading;

- d) the value of any security or other asset for which a market quotation is not readily available is its fair market value as determined by the Administrator;
- e) the value of any security, the resale of which is restricted or limited, is the lesser of the value thereof based on reported quotations in common use and that percentage of the market value of securities of the same series, the trading of which is not restricted or limited by reason of any representation, undertaking or agreement or by law, equal to the percentage that the Fund's acquisition cost was of the market value of such securities at the time of acquisition; provided that a gradual taking into account of the actual value of the securities may be made where the date on which the restriction will be lifted is known;
- f) purchased or written options on futures, and debt like securities are valued at the current market value thereof;
- g) where a covered option on futures or over-the-counter option is written, the premium received by the Fund will be reflected as a deferred credit which will be valued at an amount equal to the current market value of the option, option on futures or over-the-counter option that would have the effect of closing the position. Any difference resulting from revaluation of such options will be treated as an unrealized gain or loss on investment. The deferred credit will be deducted in arriving at the Net Asset Value of the Fund.
- h) the value of a futures contract, or a forward contract, is the gain or loss with respect thereto that would be realized if, on the Valuation Date, the position in the futures contract, or the forward contract, as the case may be, were to be closed out unless daily limits are in effect in which case fair value will be based on the current market value of the underlying interest;
- i) margin paid or deposited in respect of futures contracts and forward contracts is reflected as an account receivable and margin consisting of assets other than cash is noted as held as margin;
- j) all securities, property and assets of the Fund valued in a foreign currency and all liabilities and obligations of the Fund payable by the Fund in foreign currency are converted into Canadian funds by applying the rate of exchange obtained from the best available sources to the Administrator, including, but not limited to, the Administrator or any of its affiliates;
- k) all expenses or liabilities (including fees payable to the Manager) of the Fund are calculated on an accrual basis; and
- l) the value of any security or property to which, in the opinion of the Administrator, the above valuation principles cannot be applied (whether because no price or yield equivalent quotations are available as above provided, or for any other reason) is the fair value thereof determined in such manner as the Administrator from time to time provides.

The Administrator is entitled to rely on any values or quotations supplied to it by a third party, including the Manager, and is not required to make any investigation or inquiry as to the accuracy, completeness or validity of such values or quotations. Provided the Administrator acts in accordance with its standard of care, it will be held harmless by the Fund and will not be responsible for any losses or damages resulting from relying on such information.

INVESTING IN UNITS OF THE FUND

Purchase of Units

Investors may be admitted to the Fund and purchase Series A Units, Series F Units and Series I Units or may acquire additional Units on a weekly basis on each Valuation Date. The Units are being offered using the mutual fund order entry system FundSERV. Subscriptions for Units must be made from a distributor on the FundSERV network under the Manufacturer Code to Majestic Asset Management LLC "MAJ" and the following order codes:

Series A Units "MAJ100" Series F Units "MAJ101" Series I Units "MAJ102" Funds in respect of any subscription will be payable by investors at the time of the subscription. Investors who wish to make an initial subscription for Units of the Fund may do so by delivering a subscription application (in such form as the Manager may approve from time to time) to the Manager, through Dealers (as defined below) or other persons permitted by applicable securities laws to sell Units, accompanied by wire transferred funds in an amount equal to the purchase price through the FundSERV network. Additional subscriptions for Units of the Fund must be made by delivering a request to that effect through the FundSERV network.

Units will be offered at the Series Net Asset Value per Unit calculated as of the applicable Valuation Date. The Valuation Date used for subscriptions that are received by the Manager at least three (3) Business Days prior to the Valuation Date and accepted by the Manager by 3:00 pm on the Business Day preceding that Valuation Date, will be the Valuation Date for that week. Subscriptions that are received or accepted by the Manager after such days will be made as of the following Valuation Date. All subscriptions for Units are to be forwarded by Dealers, without charge, to the Manager or delivered through the FundSERV network, as applicable, the same day that they are received.

The Manager reserves the right to accept or reject orders, and any monies received with a rejected order will be refunded forthwith, without interest, other compensation or deduction after the Manager has made such determination. All subscriptions will be irrevocable. Fractional Units will be issued up to three decimal points.

A book-based system of registration is maintained for the Fund. Unit certificates will not be issued. The register for the Units is kept at the office of the Registrar.

Units of each Series can only be purchased in Canadian dollars.

Distribution of Units

Units of the Fund are offered to investors who are "accredited investors", as described in applicable securities legislation and resident in the provinces of Canada (the "Offering Jurisdictions") pursuant to applicable exemptions from the prospectus requirements of the securities legislation in the Offering Jurisdictions. Under no circumstances will the Manager accept a subscription for Units, whether initial or subsequent, if its distribution cannot be made in reliance on any such exemptions.

Minimum Initial and Subsequent Investments

The minimum initial investment in the Fund is \$25,000 for any Series. Subsequent investments in the Fund are subject to an additional minimum investment of \$1,000, subject to applicable securities legislation. These minimum amounts may be waived by the Manager, in its sole discretion.

REDEMPTION OF UNITS

How to Redeem Units

Units may be surrendered to the Manager for redemption by entering a request for redemption on the FundSERV network at least one Business Day prior to the Valuation Date on which Units are to be redeemed (the "Redemption Date"). Any request for redemption entered after such time will be processed on the next Valuation Date. Requests for redemption will be accepted in the order in which they are received. The Manager shall within three Business Days following the determination of the Series Net Asset Value per Unit for the applicable Redemption Date, distribute an amount equal to the Series Net Asset Value per Unit determined as of the relevant Redemption Date. Payment of the redemption proceeds will be made using the FundSERV network. Any payment referred to above, unless such payment is not honored, will discharge the Fund, the Trustee, the Manager and their agents from all liability to the redeeming Unitholder in respect of the payment and the Units redeemed and the Unitholder will cease to have any further rights with respect to such Units as of the Redemption Date.

Suspension of Redemptions

The Manager may, under certain circumstances, suspend the right of Unitholders to require the Fund to redeem Units and the concurrent payment for Units of the Fund tendered for redemption and will so immediately advise the Trustee.

In the event of such a suspension, a Unitholder who has delivered a redemption request for which the redemption price has not yet been calculated may either withdraw such Unitholder's redemption request within three Business Days of receiving notice of the suspension or receive payment based on the Series Net Asset Value per Unit of the applicable series of Units next calculated after the termination of the suspension.

Short-Term Trading Deduction

In order to protect the interest of the majority of Unitholders in the Fund and to discourage short-term trading in the Fund, Unitholders may be subject to a short-term trading deduction. If a Unitholder redeems Units of the Fund within 120 days of purchasing such Units, the Fund may deduct and retain, for the benefit of the remaining Unitholders in the Fund, five percent (5%) of the Series Net Asset Value of the Units being redeemed.

Redemption at the Demand of the Manager

The Manager may in its discretion, cause the Fund to redeem all or a portion of a Unitholder's Units by giving 30 days' prior written notice to the Unitholder, specifying the number or value of Units to be redeemed. For example, the Manager may cause the Units of any Unitholder to be redeemed if at any time as a result of redemptions the value of the Unitholder's investment in the Fund is less than the minimum initial subscription amount, unless the Unitholder increase the aggregate value of its investment to and amount which is not less than the minimum initial subscription amount. If at any time the Unitholder is in breach of the representations, warranties and covenants made in the subscription application, the Manager may cause the Fund to redeem the Units owned by such Unitholder immediately and without notice. In addition, the Manager may cause the Fund to redeem, without notice, Units owned by (i) a non-resident of Canada, if the continued ownership of such non-resident could cause the Fund to be unable to obtain or to lose its status as a mutual fund trust for the purposes of the ITA; or (ii) a person which would cause the Fund to contravene the laws of any jurisdiction or to become subject to the laws of a foreign jurisdiction.

TRANSFER OF UNITS

Units are not transferable except by operation of law or with the consent of the Manager. There is no formal market for the Units and none is expected to develop. Furthermore, this offering of Units is not qualified by way of prospectus and consequently, the resale of Units will be subject to restrictions under applicable securities legislation. Unitholders may not be able to resell Units and may only be able to redeem them. Redemptions of Units may be subject to the limitations described under "Redemption of Units" and "Purchase of Units". Investors are advised to seek legal advice prior to any resale of the Units.

FEES AND EXPENSES

Expenses

The Fund will pay for all routine and customary expenses relating to the Fund's operation, including administrative fees, registrar and transfer agency fees, trustee fees (if any), custodian fees, auditing, legal and accounting fees, communication expenses, printing and mailing expenses, all costs and expenses associated with the sale or redemption of Units, including securities filing fees (if any) and dealer servicing costs (other than dealer servicing commissions referred to under "Dealer Compensation" which are at the expense of the Manager), expenses relating to providing financial and other reports to Unitholders and convening and conducting meetings of Unitholders, all taxes, assessments or other governmental charges levied against the Fund, interest expenses, all investment expenses relating to the investments made on behalf of the Fund and all expenses incurred by the various service providers of the Fund when such expenses relate to the affairs of the Fund. In addition, the Fund will pay for expenses associated with ongoing investor relations and education relating to the Fund.

Expenses in connection with the initial organization of the Fund and the initial offering of Units are expected to be amortized over a period of five years.

Each Series of Units is responsible for the Series Expenses specifically related to that Series and a proportionate share of expenses that are common to all Series of Units. The Manager will allocate expenses to each Series of Units in its sole discretion, as it deems fair and reasonable in the circumstances.

The Manager may, from time to time, waive any portion of the fees and reimbursement of expenses otherwise payable to them, but no such waiver affects their right to receive fees and reimbursement of expenses subsequently accruing to them.

Management Fees

For providing their services to the Fund, the Manager receives monthly management fees (the "Management Fees") from the Fund. Management Fees are, for each Series, Series Expenses attributable to that Series. In the case of Series I Units, the Management Fees are negotiated with each investor and are calculated at the Unit level.

Units of the Series, other than Series I Units, are charged annual Management Fees equal to the following percentages of the Series Net Asset Value of the said Series of the Fund, calculated and accrued on each Valuation Date and payable monthly:

Series A	Series F	
2.00%	1.00%	

Management fees are subject to applicable taxes, including QST, GST or HST.

Performance Fees

The Manager also receives performance fees (the "Performance Fees") from the Fund attributable to each Series A Unit and Series F Unit. In the case of Series I Units, Performance Fees, if any, are negotiated with each investor. Performance Fees are calculated and accrue weekly and are paid on the Performance Fee Dates and on redemption of Units. Performance Fees are calculated at the Unit level and, in respect of Series A Units and Series F Units, will equal the aggregate of 20% of the positive amount obtained, if any, when the High Water Mark (as defined below) of each Unit is subtracted from the Series Net Asset Value per Unit of the Unit on the date of payment (if such difference in respect of a Unit is negative then the Performance Fee payable in respect of such Unit for the applicable Performance Fee Date shall be zero — the Performance Fee payable in respect of a Unit shall not be affected in any way by the performance of any other Unit). For this purpose, "High Water Mark" for a Unit means, initially, its subscription price and thereafter will be adjusted from time to time to equal its Series Net Asset Value per Unit immediately following the payment of a Performance Fee to the Manager in respect of such Unit. The High Water Mark does not reset. This ensures that any decline in the Series Net Asset Value per Unit has to be recouped before Performance Fees will be charged in respect of such Unit in any subsequent period.

Although Performance Fees are calculated at the Unit level, the aggregate of these Performance Fees, for each Series, will be a Series Expense attributable to that Series and borne indirectly by all Unitholders of that Series and, as such Performance Fees will have an impact on the Series Net Asset Value. Performance Fees are calculated at each Valuation Date and carried as a liability of the Fund until paid to the Manager, as the case may be, on each Performance Fee Date or on redemption of Units in respect of which such Performance Fees are payable.

The Manager may make such adjustments to the Series Net Asset Value per Unit and/or the applicable High Water Mark as are determined by the Manager to be necessary to account for any Unit subdivisions or consolidations or any other event or matter that would, in the opinion of the Manager, impact upon the computation of Performance Fees. Any such determination of the Manager will, absent manifest error, be binding on all Unitholders.

Performance fees are subject to applicable taxes, including QST, GST or HST.

Fee Rebates

To encourage large investments in the Fund and to be able to offer fees which are competitive for investments of that size, and in certain other circumstances, the Manager may, from time to time, reduce the Management Fees and/or the Performance Fees that they otherwise would be entitled to receive with respect to such an investor's investment in the Fund, provided that the amount of the fee reduction is distributed (a "Special Distribution") to such Unitholder. Special Distributions of the Fund, where applicable, will be computed on each Valuation Date and will be payable quarterly, or at such other times as the Manager may determine, first out of net income and the net capital gains of the Fund and thereafter out of capital. Any such reduction in Management Fees and/or Performance Fees in respect of a large investment in the Fund will be negotiated by the Investment Manager and the investor or the investor's Dealer and will be based primarily on the size of the investor's investment in the Fund and the total amount of services provided to the investor with respect to his investment in the Fund. The Manager may also initially reduce its fees to encourage seed investments in the Fund. A qualified investor can choose to receive the Special Distribution in cash or in additional Units of the Fund. The amount of any Special Distribution is taxable to the Unitholder receiving it, to the extent it is paid out of net income or net taxable capital gains of the Fund. See "Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations" and "Distributions".

DEALER COMPENSATION

Units will be distributed in the Offering Jurisdictions through registered dealers ("**Dealers**"), including the Manager, and such other persons as may be permitted by applicable law. In the event of such distribution, Dealers (other than the Manager) will be entitled to the compensation described below.

Sales Commissions

In the event of a Dealer sale, a sales commission of up to 5% may be deducted from the purchase order and paid by the investor to the Dealer. The remaining amount will be invested in the Fund. Sales commissions may be negotiated between the Dealer and the investor. Units issued on a reinvestment of distributions as described under "Distributions" will not be subject to a sales commission.

No deferred sales charge option is available.

Servicing Fees

The Manager will pay servicing commissions to Dealers whose clients have purchased Series A Units of the Fund and remain invested in the Fund during the relevant quarter. The servicing commission, expressed as an annual percentage of the Series Net Asset Value per Unit, is 1% for Series A Units. The servicing commissions will be paid on a quarterly basis in arrears. The Manager does not pay servicing commissions in respect of Series F Units. Servicing commissions may be modified or discontinued by the Manager at any time.

Performance-Based Servicing Fees

The Manager may share its Performance Fees with Dealers having client assets invested in Series A Units or Series F Units and remain invested in the Fund during the relevant quarter. Dealers may be paid up to 25% of the Performance Fees attributable to their clients' investment in Units of the Series.

The purpose of the performance-based servicing fee of the Fund is to ensure that the Manager, the Dealer, its representatives and investors all have a common interest in the Fund performing well. The Manager at its discretion may calculate and pay performance-based servicing fees of the Fund on a more or less frequent basis, or may modify, discontinue, or otherwise differentiate this fee among Dealers at any time and from time to time.

DISTRIBUTIONS

The Fund intends to distribute sufficient net income (including net realized capital gains, if any) to Unitholders in each calendar year to ensure that the Fund is not liable for income tax under Part I of the Tax Act. All distributions (other than

Special Distributions) will be made on a pro rata basis within each Series to each registered Unitholder determined as of the Valuation Time (prior to any subscriptions or redemptions) on the applicable Valuation Date. The Trustee will distribute net income and net realized capital gains of the Fund, if any, on an annual basis, on the last Valuation Date in each taxation year. Distributions of net income or net realized capital gains may also be made on such other dates that the Administrator deems appropriate.

Subject to applicable securities legislation, unless a distribution in cash is requested in writing by a Unitholder and such cash distribution is agreed to by the Manager, all distributions made by the Fund (net of any deductions or withholdings required by law) will be automatically reinvested in additional Units of the Fund or fractions of Units of the Fund at the Series Net Asset Value per Unit. Potential investors should keep this policy in mind when determining whether or not an investment in the Fund is suitable for their particular circumstances. Units acquired on a reinvestment of distributions are not subject to any sales charges.

The Manager, in consultation with the Administrator, may make such designations, determinations and allocations for tax purposes of amounts or portions of amounts which the Fund has received, paid, declared payable or allocated to Unitholder as distributions or redemption proceeds.

The costs of distributions, if any, will be paid by the Fund.

CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is, as of the date hereof, a summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations generally applicable to the Fund and to the acquisition, holding and disposition of Units by a Unitholder who acquires Units pursuant to this Offering Memorandum. This summary is applicable to a Unitholder who is an individual (other than a trust) and who, for the purposes of the Tax Act, is resident in Canada, deals at arm's length with the Fund, and holds Units as capital property. This summary is based on the assumption that (i) the Fund qualifies as a "mutual fund trust" as defined in the Tax Act and that it will continuously qualify as a mutual fund trust at all relevant times and (ii) the Fund will not be a SIFT Trust for the purposes of the Tax Act. If the Fund were not to qualify as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act the income tax considerations as described below and under "Eligibility for Investment" would, in some respects, be materially different. This summary does not apply to a Unitholder that has entered or will enter into a "derivative forward agreement" as that term is defined in Tax Proposals contained in a Notice of Ways and Means Motion that accompanied the federal budget tabled by the Minister of Finance (Canada) on March 21, 2013 with respect to the Units.

To qualify as a mutual fund trust, (i) the Fund must be a Canadian resident "unit trust" for purposes of the Tax Act, (ii) the only undertaking of the Fund must be the investing of its funds in property (other than real property or interests in real property or a real right in an immovable), (iii) either the Fund must comply with certain investment conditions or its units must be redeemable on demand, and (iv) the Fund must comply with certain minimum requirements respecting the ownership and dispersal of Units. An additional condition to qualify as a mutual fund trust for the purposes of the Tax Act is that the Fund may not be established or maintained primarily for the benefit of non–resident persons unless substantially all of its property consists of property other than "taxable Canadian property" within the meaning of the Tax Act.

This summary is also based on the assumption that the Fund will at no time be a "SIFT trust" as defined in the rules in the Tax Act relating to SIFT trusts and SIFT partnerships. This, in turn, is based on the assumption that the Units will at no time be listed or traded on a stock exchange or other public market. For the purpose of such rules, the redemption mechanism does not result in the Units being considered to be traded on a public market.

This summary is also based on the assumptions that none of the securities in the portfolio will be foreign affiliates of the Fund or of any Unitholder and, that none of the securities will be a "tax shelter investment" within the meaning of section 143.2 of the Tax Act. Further, this summary assumes that none of the securities in the portfolio will be "offshore investment fund property" that would require the Fund to include amounts in the Fund's income pursuant to section 94.1 of the Tax Act, or an interest in a trust which would require the Fund to report income in connection with such interest pursuant to the rules in section 94.2 of the Tax Act, or an interest in a non-resident trust other than an exempt foreign trust as defined in section 94 of the Tax Act.

Generally, Units of the Fund will be considered to be capital property to a Unitholder provided that the Unitholder does not hold such Units in the course of carrying on a business of buying and selling securities and has not acquired them in one or more transactions considered to be an adventure or concern in the nature of trade. Certain Unitholders may be entitled to make an irrevocable election to treat Units (and all other "Canadian securities" owned or subsequently acquired by them) as capital property pursuant to subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act.

This summary is based on the current provisions of the Tax Act and the regulations thereunder, the current published administrative policies and assessing practices of the Canada Revenue Agency (the "CRA"), and all specific proposals to amend the Tax Act and regulations thereunder publicly announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior to the date hereof (the "Proposed Amendments"). This summary does not otherwise take into account or anticipate any changes in law, whether by legislative, governmental or judicial action, nor does it take into account provincial, territorial or foreign income tax legislation or considerations.

This summary is not exhaustive of all possible Canadian federal tax considerations applicable to an investment in Units. Moreover, the income and other tax consequences of acquiring, holding or disposing of Units will vary depending on the investor's particular circumstances, including the province or territory in which the investor resides or carries on business. Accordingly, this summary is of a general nature only and is not intended to be legal or tax advice to any investor. Investors should consult their own tax advisors for advice with respect to the income tax consequences of an investment in Units, based on their own particular circumstances.

Taxation of the Fund

The Fund will generally be subject to tax in each year under Part I of the Tax Act on the amount of its income for tax purposes for the year, including net realized taxable capital gains, less the portion thereof that it claims in respect of the amount paid or payable to Unitholders in the year. The Fund intends to deduct in each year, in computing its income, the full amount available for deduction in each year and, therefore, provided the Fund makes distributions in each year of its net income and net realized capital gains, it will generally not be liable in such year for any tax on its net income or profit under Part I of the Tax Act.

The Fund will be entitled for each taxation year throughout which it is a mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act to reduce (receive a refund in respect of) its liability, if any, for tax on its net realized capital gains by an amount determined under the Tax Act based on the redemptions of Units during the year (the "Capital Gains Refund"). The Capital Gains Refund in a particular taxation year may not completely offset the tax liability of the Fund for such taxation year which may arise upon the disposition of securities included in the Canadian Securities Portfolio in connection with the redemption of Units.

All of the Fund's deductible expenses for the purposes of the Tax Act, including expenses common to all Series of the Fund, all management and performance fees and other Series Expenses, will be taken into account in determining the income or loss of the Fund as a whole. Net income (or losses) including capital gains (or capital losses) realized by the Fund in a year in respect of a particular Series of Units must be netted against losses (or gains) or capital losses (or gains) realized by the Fund in that year in respect of all other Series of Units, in accordance with the rules provided in the Tax Act, to determine the net income and net capital gains of the Fund as a whole for that year. This netting may result in income and/or capital gains allocations to a particular Series of Units that differ from those that would result if such Units had been issued by a separate trust having only one series of units.

In general, gains and losses realized on transactions in derivatives will be on income account.

The Fund's portfolio may include futures contracts that are not denominated in Canadian dollars. The cost and proceeds of disposition of futures contracts and all other amounts will be converted to an amount expressed in Canadian currency using the noon rate quoted by the Bank of Canada for the day on which a particular amount arose for the purposes of the Tax Act. Accordingly, the Fund may realize gains or losses by virtue of the fluctuation in the value of foreign currencies relative to Canadian dollars.

The Fund may derive income or gains from investments in countries other than Canada and, as a result, may be liable to pay foreign income or profits tax to such countries. To the extent such foreign tax paid by the Fund exceeds 15% of the

amount included in the Fund's income from such investments, such excess may generally be deducted by the Fund in computing its income for purposes of the Tax Act. To the extent that such foreign tax paid does not exceed 15% of such foreign source income and has not been deducted in computing the Fund's income, the Fund may designate a portion of its foreign source income in respect of a Unitholder so that such income and a portion of the foreign tax paid by the Fund may be regarded as foreign source income of, and foreign tax paid by, the Unitholder for the purposes of the foreign tax credit provisions of the Tax Act.

The Tax Act contains rules concerning the taxation of certain trusts, the units of which are listed or traded on a stock exchange or other public market, that own certain types of property defined as "non-portfolio property". A trust that is subject to these rules is subject to trust level taxation at rates comparable to those that apply to corporations or the trust's income earned from "non-portfolio property". These rules should not impose any tax on the Fund to the extent that the Units of the Fund (as well as any other securities that the Fund may issue) are not listed or traded on a stock exchange, trading system or other organized facility.

The Tax Act was amended to include "loss restriction event" ("LRE") rules that could potentially apply to certain trusts including the Fund. In general, the Fund would be subject to a LRE if a person (or group of persons), together with persons with whom it is affiliated, owns more than 50% of the fair market value of the Fund's outstanding Units. If a LRE occurs (i) the Fund will be deemed to have a year-end for tax purposes, (ii) any net income and net realized capital gains of the Fund at such year-end will be distributed to Unitholders of the Fund, and (iii) the Fund will be restricted in its ability to use tax losses (including any unrealized capital losses) on a going forward basis. Taxation of Unitholders

A Unitholder will generally be required to include in computing income for a year the amount of the Fund's taxable income for the year, including net realized taxable capital gains and Special Distributions paid or payable to the Unitholder (whether in cash or in Units) in the year. The non-taxable portion of the Fund's net realized capital gains paid or payable to a Unitholder in a year will not be included in the Unitholder's income for the year. Any other amount in excess of the Fund's taxable income for a year paid or payable to the Unitholder in the year will not generally be included in the Unitholder's income. Such amount, however, will generally reduce the adjusted cost base of the Unitholder's Units. To the extent that the adjusted cost base of a Unit would be less than zero, the negative amount will be deemed to be a capital gain realized by the Unitholder from the disposition of the Unit and the Unitholder's adjusted cost base of Units will be increased by the amount of such deemed capital gain. Any loss of the Fund for purposes of the Tax Act cannot be treated as a loss of a Unitholder.

Provided that appropriate designations are made by the Fund, such portion of: (i) the net realized taxable capital gains of the Fund; (ii) the foreign source income of the Fund and foreign taxes eligible for the foreign tax credit; and (iii) taxable dividends received by the Fund on shares of taxable Canadian corporations, as is paid or payable to a Unitholder will effectively retain its character and be treated as such in the hands of the Unitholder for purposes of the Tax Act. A Unitholder may be entitled to claim a foreign tax credit in respect of foreign taxes designated to such Holder in accordance with the detailed rules in the Tax Act. To the extent that amounts are designated as taxable dividends from taxable Canadian corporations, the gross up and dividend tax credit rules will apply.

The Series Net Asset Value per Unit will reflect any income and capital gains of the Fund that have accrued, or had been realized but not made payable, at the time Units are acquired. Accordingly, a Unitholder who acquires Units may become taxable on the Unitholder's share of income and capital gains of the Fund that accrued, or had been realized but not made payable, before the Units were acquired.

On the disposition or deemed disposition, including the redemption, of a Unit, the Unitholder will realize a capital gain (or capital loss) to the extent that the Unitholder's proceeds of disposition (other than any amount payable by the Fund which represents an amount that is otherwise required to be included in the Unitholder's income as described above) exceed (or are exceeded by) the aggregate of the adjusted cost base of the Unit and any reasonable costs of disposition. For the purpose of determining the adjusted cost base of Units of a particular Series, the cost of the newly acquired Units will be averaged with the adjusted cost base of all Units of the Series owned by the Unitholder as capital property before the acquisition. The cost of Units on a reinvestment of distributions from the Fund will be equal to the amount of the distribution.

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Fund may allocate and designate any income or capital gains realized by the Fund as a result of any disposition of property of the Fund undertaken to permit or facilitate the redemption of Units to a Unitholder

whose Units are being redeemed. In addition, the Fund has the authority to distribute, allocate and designate any income or capital gains of the Fund to a Unitholder who has redeemed Units of the Fund during a year in an amount equal to the Unitholder's share, at the time of redemption, of the Fund's income and capital gains for the year or such other amount that is determined by the Fund to be reasonable. Any such allocations will reduce the redeeming Unitholder's proceeds of disposition.

One-half of any capital gain ("taxable capital gain") realized on the disposition of Units will generally be included in the Unitholder's income and one-half of any capital loss realized may be deducted from taxable capital gains in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act.

In general terms, income of the Fund paid or payable to a Unitholder that is designated as net realized taxable capital gains, and taxable capital gains realized on the disposition of Units, may increase the Unitholder's liability for alternative minimum tax.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

Provided the Fund is a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act, Units of the Fund will be qualified investments under the Tax Act and the regulations thereunder for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement income funds, deferred profit sharing plans, registered education savings plans, registered disability savings plans or tax-free savings accounts. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Units are a "prohibited investment" for a registered retirement savings plan ("RRSP"), a registered retirement income fund ("RRIF") or a tax-free savings account ("TFSA") that acquires Units, the annuitant or holder thereof will be subject to a penalty tax as set out in the Tax Act. The Units will generally be a "prohibited investment" for these purposes if the holder of the TFSA or the annuitant under the RRSP or RRIF, as applicable, (i) does not deal at arm's length with the Fund for purposes of the Tax Act, or (ii) has a "significant interest" as defined in the Tax Act in the Fund. In addition, the Units will generally not be a "prohibited investment" if the Units are "excluded property" as defined in the Tax Act.

RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors do not purport to be a complete explanation of all risks involved in purchasing Units. Potential investors should read this entire Offering Memorandum and consult with their legal and other professional advisors before determining to invest in Units.

Speculative Investment

An investment in the Fund may be deemed speculative and is not intended as a complete investment program. A subscription for Units should be considered only by persons financially able to maintain their investment and who can bear the risk of loss associated with an investment in the Fund. Investors should review closely the investment objectives and investment strategies to be utilized by the Fund as outlined herein to familiarize themselves with the risks associated with an investment in the Fund. There is no assurance that the Fund will be able to achieve its investment objective.

General Investment Risk

The Series Net Asset Value per Unit will vary directly with the market value and return of the investment portfolio of the Fund. There can be no assurance that the Fund will not incur losses. There is no guarantee that the Fund will earn a return.

Fees and Expenses

The Fund is obligated to pay fees, brokerage commissions and legal, accounting, filing and other expenses regardless of whether it realizes profits.

Not a Public Mutual Fund

The Fund is not subject to the restrictions placed on mutual funds offered to the public to ensure diversification and liquidity of the Fund's portfolio.

Changes in the Investment Objectives and Strategies

The Manager may alter the Fund's investment objectives, strategies and restrictions without prior approval by Unitholders.

Limited Ability to Liquidate Investment

There is no formal market for Units and one is not expected to develop. This offering of Units is not qualified by way of prospectus, and consequently the resale of Units is subject to restrictions under applicable securities legislation. In addition, Units may not be assigned, encumbered, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred except with the prior written consent of the Manager, which may be withheld in the Manager's sole and absolute discretion. Accordingly, it is possible that Unitholders may not be able to resell their Units other than by way of redemption of their Units on a Valuation Date. These redemptions will be subject to the limitations described under "Redemption of Units". Unitholders may not be able to liquidate their investments in a timely manner. As a result, an investment in the Units is suitable only for sophisticated investors who do not require liquidity for their investment and are able to bear the financial risk of the investment for an extended period of time.

Redemptions

There are circumstances in which the Fund may suspend redemptions. See "Redemption of Units". Accordingly, Units may not be an appropriate investment for investors seeking liquidity. Substantial redemptions of Units could require the Fund to liquidate positions more rapidly than otherwise desirable to raise the necessary cash to fund redemptions and achieve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller asset base. Such factors could adversely affect the value of the Units redeemed and of the Units remaining outstanding.

Valuation of the Fund's Investments

While the Fund will be independently audited by the auditors on an annual basis in order to ensure as fair and accurate a pricing as possible, valuation of the Fund's investments may involve uncertainties and judgmental determinations and, if such valuations should prove to be incorrect, the Net Asset Value of the Fund and the Series Net Asset Value per Unit could be adversely affected. Independent pricing information may not at times be available regarding certain of the Fund's investments. Valuation determinations will be made in good faith in accordance with the Trust Agreement.

There is risk that an investment in the Fund by a new investor (or an additional investment by an existing Unitholder) could dilute the value of investments for the other Unitholders if the actual value of such investments is higher than the value designated by the Fund. The Manager does not intend to adjust the Net Asset Value of the Fund retroactively. The valuation of assets of the Fund for the purpose of determining subscription and redemption prices of Units and the calculation of applicable fees, may not be in accordance with IFRS but will generally be in accordance with industry practice.

Unitholders not Entitled to Participate in Management

Unitholders are not entitled to participate in the management or control of the Fund or its operations. Unitholders do not have any input into the Fund's trading. The success or failure of the Fund will ultimately depend on the indirect investment of the assets of the Fund by the Manager, with which Unitholders will not have any direct dealings.

Reliance on the Manager

The Fund will be relying on the ability of the Manager to actively manage the Fund and its investments. There can be no assurance that satisfactory replacements for the Manager will be available if it ceases to act as such. Termination of the Manager will terminate the Fund if no successor is appointed.

Dependence of Manager on Key Personnel

The Manager depends, to a great extent, on the services of a limited number of individuals in the administration of the Fund's activities. The loss of such individuals for any reason could impair the ability of the Manager to perform its management or advisory activities on behalf of the Fund.

Tax Liability

Subject to applicable securities legislation, all distributions made by the Fund (net of any deductions or withholdings required by law) will be automatically reinvested in additional Units of the Fund or fractions of Units of the Fund at the Series Net Asset Value per Unit. Unitholders, therefore, will be required to include all such distributions in computing their income for tax purposes, irrespective of the fact that cash may not have been distributed to such Unitholders.

Series Risk

Since the Fund may have multiple Series of Units, each Series will be charged, as a separate Series, any Series Expenses such as management fees that are specifically attributable to that Series. However, the Manager generally will allocate all other expenses of the Fund among the Series of Units in a fair and equitable manner and the creditor of the Fund may seek to satisfy its claims from the assets of the Fund as a whole, even though its claims relate only to a particular Series of Units.

Performance Fees

The Manager may receive Performance Fees in respect of each Series A Units and Series F Units based upon appreciation, if any, in the Series Net Asset Value per Unit of such Units. The Performance Fees theoretically may create an incentive for the Manager to make investments that are riskier or more speculative than would be the case if such fees did not exist. In addition, because the Performance Fees are calculated on a basis that includes unrealized appreciation of the Fund's assets, it may be greater than if such compensation were based solely on realized gains.

Potential Indemnification Obligations

Under certain circumstances, the Fund might be subject to significant indemnification obligations in favour of the Trustee, the Manager, and other service providers to the Fund or certain parties related to them. The Fund will not carry any insurance to cover such potential obligations and, to the Manager's knowledge, none of the foregoing parties will be insured for losses for which the Fund has agreed to indemnify them. Any indemnification paid by the Fund would reduce the Net Asset Value of such Fund and, by extension, the Series Net Asset Value per Unit.

Lack of Independent Experts Representing Unitholders

The Fund and the Manager have consulted with a single legal counsel regarding the formation and terms of the Fund and the offering of Units. Unitholders have not, however, been independently represented. Therefore, to the extent that the Fund, Unitholders or this offering could benefit by further independent review, such benefit will not be available. Each prospective investor should consult his or her own legal, tax and financial advisors regarding the desirability of purchasing Units and the suitability of investing in the Fund.

No Involvement of Unaffiliated Selling Agent

No outside selling agent unaffiliated with the Manager has made any review or investigation of the terms of this offering, the structure of the Fund or the background of the Manager.

Trading Errors

In the course of carrying out trading and investing responsibilities on behalf of the Fund, the Manager's personnel may make "trading errors", i.e., errors in executing specific trading instructions. Examples of trading errors include: (i) buying or selling an investment asset at a price or quantity that is inconsistent with the specific trading instructions generated by a particular strategy; or (ii) buying rather than selling a particular investment asset (and *vice versa*). Trading errors are an

intrinsic factor in any complex investment process, and may occur notwithstanding the exercise of due care and special procedures designed to prevent trading errors. Trading errors are, therefore, distinguishable from errors in judgment, due diligence or other factors leading to a specific trading instruction being generated, as well as from unauthorized trading or other improper conduct by the Manager's personnel. Consequently, the Manager will (unless the Manager otherwise determines) treat all trading errors (including those which result in losses and those which result in gains) as for the account of the Fund, unless they are the result of conduct by the Manager which is inconsistent with the Manager's standard of care.

Possible Negative Impact of Regulation of Hedge Funds

The regulatory environment for hedge funds is evolving and changes to it may adversely affect the Fund. To the extent that regulators adopt practices of regulatory oversight in the area of hedge funds that create additional compliance, transaction, disclosure or other costs for hedge funds, returns of the Fund may be negatively affected. In addition, the regulatory or tax environment for derivative and related instruments is evolving and may be subject to modification by government or judicial action that may adversely affect the value of the investments held by the Fund. The effect of any future regulatory or tax change on the portfolio of the Fund is impossible to predict.

Early Termination

In the event of the early termination of the Fund, the Fund would distribute to the Unitholders *pro rata* their interest in the assets of the Fund available for such distribution, subject to the rights of the Manager to retain monies for costs and expenses. Certain assets held by the Fund may be illiquid and might have little or no marketable value. In addition, the assets held by the Fund would have to be sold by the Fund or distributed in kind of the Unitholders. It is possible that at the time of such sale or distribution certain securities held by the Fund would be worth less than the initial cost of such assets, resulting in a loss to the Unitholders.

General Economic and Market Conditions

The success of the Fund's activities may be affected by general economic and market conditions, such as interest rates, availability of credit, inflation rates, economic uncertainty, changes in laws, and national and international political circumstances. These factors may affect the level and volatility of prices and the liquidity of the Funds investments. Unexpected volatility or illiquidity could impair the Fund's profitability or result in losses.

Fixed Income Securities

The Fund may invest in money market instruments and in fixed income securities of U.S. and Canadian issuers. Fixed income securities pay fixed, variable or floating rates of interest. The value of fixed income securities in which the Fund invest will change in response to fluctuations in interest rates. Fixed income securities are subject to the risk of the issuer's inability to meet principal and interest payments on its obligations (i.e., credit risk) and are subject to price volatility due to such factors as interest rate sensitivity, market perception of the creditworthiness of the issuer and general market liquidity (i.e., market risk). If fixed income investments are not held to maturity, the Fund may suffer a loss at the time of sale of such securities.

Currency Risk

Investment denominated in a currency other than Canadian dollars will be affected by the changes in the value of the Canadian dollar in relation to the value of the currency in which the security is denominated. Thus the value of such investments held by the Fund may be worth more or less depending on their susceptibility to foreign exchange rates.

Competition in the Non-Traditional Investment Industry

The non-traditional investment industry is highly competitive. In recent years there has been a marked increase in the number of, and flow of capital into, investment vehicles established in order to implement non-traditional or "alternative" investment strategies. Prospective investors should understand that the Fund competes with other market participants that may have substantially greater financial and other resources as well as better access to investment opportunities than the Fund.

Portfolio Turnover

The operation of the Fund may result in a high annual portfolio turnover rate. There has been no limit placed on the rate of portfolio turnover in the Fund and portfolio assets may be sold without regard to the time they have been held when, in the opinion of the Fund's investment advisor, investment considerations warrant such action. A high rate of portfolio turnover involves correspondingly greater expenses than a lower rate (for example, greater transaction costs such as brokerage fees).

Futures Trading

The Fund intends to trade in derivative financial instruments, including, without limitation, options, swaps, futures and forward contracts, and may use derivative techniques for hedging and for other trading purposes, including for the purpose of obtaining the economic benefit of an investment in an entity without making a direct investment. Futures markets can be highly volatile. The risks posed by such instruments and techniques, which can be extremely complex and may involve leveraging of the Fund's assets, include: (i) credit risks (the exposure to the possibility of loss resulting from a counterparty's failure to meet its financial obligations); (ii) market risk (adverse movements in the price of a financial asset or commodity); (iii) legal risks (the characterization of a transaction or a party's legal capacity to enter into it could render the financial contract unenforceable, and the insolvency or bankruptcy of a counterparty could pre-empt otherwise enforceable contract rights); (iv) operations risk (inadequate controls, deficient procedures, human error, system failure or fraud); (v) documentation risk (exposure to losses resulting from inadequate documentation); (vi) liquidity risk (exposure to losses created by inability to prematurely terminate the derivative); (vii) system risk (the risk that financial difficulties in one institution or a major market disruption will cause uncontrollable financial harm to the financial system); (viii) concentration risk (exposure to losses from the concentration of closely related risks such as exposure to a particular industry or exposure linked to a particular entity); and (ix) settlement risk (the risk faced when one party to a transaction has performed its obligations under a contract but has not yet received value from its counterparty). In addition, governments from time to time intervene, directly and by regulation, in certain markets. Such intervention is often intended to influence prices directly which may negatively affect the Fund's performance. The Fund is also indirectly subject to the risk of failure of any of the exchanges on which such contracts trade or of the exchange's clearinghouses, if any.

Futures Trading May be Illiquid

Most futures exchanges limit fluctuations in certain contract prices during a single day by regulations referred to as "daily price fluctuation limits" or "daily limits". Pursuant to such regulations, during a single trading day no trades may be executed at prices beyond the daily limits. Once the price of a contract has increased or decreased by an amount equal to the daily limit, positions in the contract can be neither taken nor liquidated unless traders are willing to effect trades at or within the limit. Prices of various contracts have occasionally moved the daily limit for several consecutive days with little or no trading. Similar occurrences could prevent the Fund from promptly liquidating its unfavourable positions and subject it to substantial losses. While daily limits may reduce or effectively eliminate the liquidity of a particular market, they do not limit ultimate losses, and may in fact substantially increase losses because it may prevent the liquidation of unfavourable positions. There is no limitation on daily price moves in trading forward contracts. In addition, the Fund may not be able to execute trades at favourable prices if little trading in the contracts involved is taking place. Under certain circumstances, the Fund may be required to accept or make delivery of the underlying commodity if the position cannot be liquidated prior to its expiration date. It also is possible that an exchange might suspend trading in a particular contract, order immediate liquidation and settlement of a particular contract or order that trading in a particular contract be conducted for liquidation only. Similarly, trading in options on a particular futures contract may become restricted if trading in the underlying futures contract has become restricted.

Options

Selling call and put options is a highly specialized activity and entails greater than ordinary investment risk. The risk of loss when purchasing an option is limited to the amount of the purchase price of the option, however investment in an option may be subject to greater fluctuation than an investment in the underlying asset or derivative. In the case of the sale of an uncovered option there can be potential for an unlimited loss. To some extent this risk may be hedged by the purchase or sale of the underlying asset or derivative.

Trading on Foreign Exchanges

The Fund may trade in futures, forward and option contracts on exchanges located outside Canada and outside the United States where the Commodity Futures Trading Commission regulations do not apply. Some foreign exchanges, in contrast to U.S. and Canadian exchanges, are "principals' markets" in which performance with respect to a contract is the responsibility only of the individual member with whom the trader has entered into a contract and not of the exchange or clearinghouse, if any. In the case of trading on such foreign exchanges, the Fund will be subject to the risk of the inability of, or refusal by, the counterparty, to perform with respect to such contracts. The Fund also may not have the same access to certain trades as do various other participants in foreign markets. Due to the absence of a clearinghouse system on certain foreign markets, such markets are significantly more susceptible to disruptions than Canadian or United States exchanges. Trading on foreign exchanges may involve certain risks which may not be applicable to trading on Canadian or United States exchanges, such as the risks of exchange controls, expropriation, burdensome or confiscatory taxation, moratoriums, or political or diplomatic events. In addition, certain of these foreign markets are newly formed and may lack personnel experienced in floor trading as well as in monitoring floor traders for compliance with exchange rules. Also, trading on foreign exchanges will be subject to the risk of currency fluctuations which may adversely affect the Fund's unrealized gains or losses. Furthermore, with respect to trading on foreign markets the Fund will be subject to the risk of fluctuation in the exchange rate between the local currency and dollars and to the possibility of exchange controls.

Reliance on Trading Strategies and Analytical Tools

The Manager uses certain strategies that depend on the reliability and accuracy of analytical models. To the extent that such models, or the assumption underlying them, do not prove to be correct, the Fund may not perform as anticipated, which could result in substantial losses for the Fund and, therefore, indirectly, Unitholders of the Fund. Since the Manager's trading and risk-management strategies are proprietary, it is also not possible to independently verify that the Manager is following these strategies. There can be no assurance that the strategies currently being used will produce results similar to those produced in the past.

Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks

Legal, tax and regulatory changes to laws or administrative practice could adversely affect the Fund. For example, the regulatory or tax environment for derivative instruments is evolving and changes in the regulation or taxation of derivative instruments may adversely affect the value of derivative instruments held by the Fund and the ability of the Fund to pursue its investment strategies. Interpretation of law or administrative practice may affect the characterization of the Fund's earnings as capital gains or income, which may increase the level of tax borne by the investor as a result of increased taxable distributions from the Fund.

Leverage

The low margin deposits normally required in futures trading or the good faith deposits which may be required in forward contracts permit an extremely high degree of leverage. As a result, a relatively small price movement in a contract may result in immediate and substantial losses to a trader holding a position in such contract. Thus, like other such leveraged investments, any purchase or sale of a futures contract or forward contract may result in losses in excess of the amount invested in margin deposits or good faith deposits, as the case may be. To mitigate the risk, the Fund will maintain a leverage maximum as measured by a margin-to-equity ratio cap of 50%.

Hedging

Although a hedge is intended to reduce risk, it does not eliminate risk entirely. A hedging strategy may not be effective. A hedge can result in a loss in the case of an extraordinary event. There are several such possible cases including, but not limited to: (i) lack of liquidity during market panics, (ii) imperfect correlation between the underlying asset of the derivative and the asset being hedged, (iii) default of counterparties. To protect the Fund's capital against the occurrence of such events, the Manager will attempt to maintain a diversified portfolio.

In light of the foregoing there can be no assurance that the Fund's investment objectives will be achieved or that the Series Net Asset Value per Unit at redemption will be equal to or more than a purchaser's original cost.

REPORTING TO UNITHOLDERS AND MEETINGS OF UNITHOLDERS

Reporting to Unitholders

The fiscal year end of the Fund is December 31. Unitholders will be sent audited annual financial statements within 90 days of year end and unaudited semi-annual financial statements within 60 days of June 30, or as otherwise required by law. Additional interim reporting to Unitholders will be at the discretion of the Manager. The Fund may enter into other agreements with certain Unitholders that may entitle such Unitholders to receive additional reporting. Unitholders will receive the applicable required tax form(s) within the time required by applicable law to assist Unitholders in making the necessary tax filings.

Meetings of Unitholders

Pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement applicable to the Fund, Unitholder approval is only required if the nature of an amendment to the Trust Agreement is a matter for which applicable laws provide that such approval is required or if the amendment would adversely affect the pecuniary value of the interest of any Unitholder of the Fund (or of the Series).. The Manager is not aware of any requirement under applicable law which currently requires Unitholder approval for any amendment to the Trust Agreement or other change to the Fund. The Manager may convene a meeting of Unitholders, or of a Series of Unitholders, as it considers appropriate or advisable from time to time. Unitholders holding not less than 50% of the votes attaching to all outstanding Units may requisition a meeting of Unitholders by giving a written notice to the Manager and the Trustee setting out in detail the reason(s) for calling and holding such a meeting. Units of a Series will vote separately as a Series if the notice calling the meeting so provides. Not less than 21 days' notice will be given of any meeting of Unitholders. The quorum at any meeting is two Unitholders of the Fund, or of the Series, as the case may be, represented in person or by proxy, representing not less than 5% of the votes attaching to all the Units entitled to vote at such meeting. If no quorum is present at such meeting when called, the meeting will be adjourned by the Manager to a date and time determined by the Manager, and at the adjourned meeting the Unitholders then present in person or represented by proxy will form the necessary quorum, if notice of the adjourned meeting is given. Unless otherwise provided in the Trust Agreement or by applicable securities laws, every question submitted to a meeting of Unitholders shall be decided by a majority of the votes cast.

AMENDMENT OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT

Any provision of the Trust Agreement may be amended by the Manager, upon notice to Unitholders if the amendment does not constitute an amendment for which the Trust Agreement or applicable laws provide that the approval of Unitholders is required. If an amendment does require Unitholder approval, a meeting of Unitholders will be called by the Manager as described above. Notice of any amendment which does not require Unitholder approval will be given in writing to Unitholders of the Fund and not take effect until at least 60 days after the notice is given. However, the Manager may determine that any amendment will become effective at an earlier time if that seems desirable and the amendment is not detrimental to the interest of any Unitholder of the Fund.

The Fund may be terminated on the occurrence of certain events stipulated in the Trust Agreement. The Manager may resign as manager of the Fund, and if no successor is appointed, the Fund will be terminated. On termination of the Fund, the Trustee will distribute the assets of the Fund in cash or in kind in accordance with the Trust Agreement.

AUDITORS

The auditors of the Fund are KPMG s.r.l./S.E.N.C.R.L. or such other party as the Manager may retain.

TRUSTEE

TSX TRUST, or such other party as the Manager may retain, acts as the trustee of the Fund. The Manager may only remove the trustee upon 60 days prior written notice to the trustee and the Unitholders.

CUSTODIAN

SOCIÉTÉ GÉNÉRALE CAPITAL CANADA INC., or such other party as the Manager may retain, acts as the Custodian of the Fund. The Custodian will have custody of all assets of the Fund.

ADMINISTRATOR AND REGISTRAR

SGGG FUND SERVICES INC., or such other party as the Manager may retain, acts as the administrator of the Fund.

FUTURES BROKER

SOCIÉTÉ GÉNÉRALE CAPITAL CANADA INC., or such other party as the Manager may retain, acts as the Fund's futures broker. The futures broker will hold assets of the Fund that are derivative products.

LEGAL COUNSEL

FASKEN MARTINEAU DUMOULIN LLP, or such other party as the Manager may retain, acts as the legal counsel of the Manager and the Fund

MATERIAL AGREEMENTS

The only material agreements of the Fund are the Trust Agreement and the Advisory Agreement. Copies of these agreements will be made available to Unitholders upon request and may be inspected at the principal office of the Fund during normal business hours.

STATUTORY AND CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS OF ACTION

The following statutory or contractual rights of action for damages or rescission will apply to a purchase of Units. The applicable securities legislation in certain Offering Jurisdictions provides purchasers, or requires purchasers be provided, with remedies for rescission or damages, or both, if this Offering Memorandum or any amendment to it contains a misrepresentation. However, these remedies must be exercised within the time limits prescribed. Purchasers should refer to the applicable legislative provisions for the complete text of these rights and/or consult with a legal advisor.

Rights for Purchasers in Alberta

Securities legislation in Alberta provides that every purchaser of Units pursuant to this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto shall have, in addition to any other rights they may have at law, a right of action for damages or rescission, against the Fund and certain other persons if this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto contains a "misrepresentation" (as defined in the *Securities Act* (Alberta) (the "Alberta Act")). However, such rights must be exercised within prescribed time limits. Purchasers should refer to the applicable provisions of the Alberta securities legislation for particulars of those rights or consult with a lawyer. In particular, Section 204 of the Alberta Act provides that if this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto contains a misrepresentation, a purchaser who purchases Units offered under this Offering Memorandum or any amendment will be deemed to have relied upon the misrepresentation, if it was a misrepresentation at the time of purchase, and has a right of action for damages against the Fund and every person or company who signed this Offering Memorandum or, alternatively, for rescission against the Fund, provided that if the purchaser exercises its right of rescission against the Fund, the purchaser will not have a right of action for damages against the Fund or against any aforementioned person or company.

No action can be commenced to enforce the rights of action described above more than:

(a) in the case of an action for rescission, 180 days from the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action, or

- (b) in the case of any action, other than an action for rescission, the earlier of:
 - (i) 180 days from the date that the purchaser first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or
 - (ii) three years from the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

No person or company referred to above is liable if the person or company proves that the purchaser had knowledge of the misrepresentation. In addition, no person or company will be liable in an action pursuant to section 204 of the Alberta Act if the person or company proves that:

- (a) this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto was sent to the purchaser without the person's or company's knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of it being sent, the person or company promptly gave reasonable notice to the Fund that it was sent without the knowledge and consent of the person or company;
- (b) on becoming aware of the misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum, the person or company withdrew its consent to this Offering Memorandum and gave reasonable notice to the Fund of the withdrawal and the reason for it; or
- (c) if, with respect to any part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto purporting to be made on the authority of an expert, or purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, an opinion or a statement of an expert, that person or company proves had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that there had been a misrepresentation, the relevant part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto did not fairly represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert, or was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the report, opinion or statement of the expert.

In addition, no person or company is liable with respect to any part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, unless the person or company: (i) failed to conduct an investigation sufficient to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation; or (ii) believed that there had been a misrepresentation.

In an action for damages, the defendant will not be liable for all or any part of the damages that it proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the Units as a result of the misrepresentation relied upon. The amount recoverable under this right of action will not exceed the price at which the Units were offered under this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto. The rights of action for rescission or damages are in addition to and without derogation from any other right the purchaser may have at law.

This summary is subject to the express provisions of the Alberta Act and the regulations and rules made under it, and prospective investors should refer to the complete text of those provisions.

Rights for Purchasers in Saskatchewan

Section 138 of *The Securities Act, 1988* (Saskatchewan), as amended (the "Saskatchewan Act") provides that where an offering memorandum (such as this Offering Memorandum) or any amendment thereto is sent or delivered to a purchaser and it contains a misrepresentation (as defined in the Saskatchewan Act), a purchaser who purchases a Unit covered by this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto is deemed to have relied upon that misrepresentation, if it was a misrepresentation at the time of purchase, and has a right of action for rescission against the Fund or has a right of action for damages against:

- (a) the Fund;
- (b) every promoter and director of the Fund at the time this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto was sent or delivered;

- (c) every person or company whose consent has been filed respecting the offering, but only with respect to reports, opinions or statements that have been made by them;
- (d) every person who or company that, in addition to the persons or companies mentioned in (a) to (c) above, signed this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto; and
- (e) every person who or company that sells Units of the Fund on behalf of the Fund under this Offering Memorandum or amendment thereto.

Such rights of rescission and damages are subject to certain limitations including the following:

- (a) if the purchaser elects to exercise its right of rescission against the Fund, it shall have no right of action for damages against it;
- (b) in an action for damages, a defendant will not be liable for all or any portion of the damages that he, she or it proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the Units resulting from the misrepresentation relied on:
- (c) no person or company, other than the Fund, will be liable for any part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, unless the person or company failed to conduct a reasonable investigation sufficient to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation or believed that there had been a misrepresentation;
- (d) in no case shall the amount recoverable exceed the price at which the Units were offered; and
- (e) no person or company is liable in an action for rescission or damages if that person or company proves that the purchaser purchased the securities with knowledge of the misrepresentation.

In addition, no person or company, other than the Fund, will be liable in an action pursuant to section 138 of the Saskatchewan Act if the person or company proves that:

- (a) this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto was sent or delivered without the person's or company's knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of it being sent or delivered, that person or company gave reasonable general notice that it was so sent or delivered; or
- (b) with respect to any part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto purporting to be made on the authority of an expert, or purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, an opinion or a statement of an expert, that person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that there had been a misrepresentation, the part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto did not fairly represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert, or was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the report, opinion or statement of the expert.

In addition, no person or company will be liable in an action pursuant to section 138 of the Saskatchewan Act if that person or company proves that in respect of a misrepresentation in forward looking information (as defined in the Saskatchewan Act), such person or company proves that with respect to the document containing the forward looking information, approximate to that information, there is contained reasonable cautionary language identifying the forward looking information as such and identifying material factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from a conclusion, forecast or projection in the forward looking information; and a statement of material factors or assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or making a forecast or projection set out in the forward looking information; and, the person or company had a reasonable basis for drawing the conclusions or making the forecast and projections set out in the forward looking information.

Not all defences upon which we or others may rely are described herein. Please refer to the full text of the Saskatchewan Act for a complete listing.

Similar rights of action for damages and rescission are provided in section 138.1 of the Saskatchewan Act in respect of a misrepresentation in advertising and sales literature disseminated in connection with an offering of securities.

Section 138.2 of the Saskatchewan Act also provides that where an individual makes a verbal statement to a prospective purchaser that contains a misrepresentation relating to the security purchased and the verbal statement is made either before or contemporaneously with the purchase of the security, the purchaser is deemed to have relied on the misrepresentation, if it was a misrepresentation at the time of purchase, and has a right of action for damages against the individual who made the verbal statement.

Section 141(1) of the Saskatchewan Act provides a purchaser with the right to void the purchase agreement and to recover all money and other consideration paid by the purchaser for the securities if the securities are sold in contravention of the Saskatchewan Act, the regulations to the Saskatchewan Act or a decision of the Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission.

Section 141(2) of the Saskatchewan Act also provides a right of action for rescission or damages to a purchaser of securities to whom an offering memorandum or any amendment to it was not sent or delivered prior to or at the same time as the purchaser enters into an agreement to purchase the securities, as required by Section 80.1 of the Saskatchewan Act.

The rights of action for damages or rescission under the Saskatchewan Act are in addition to and do not derogate from any other right which a purchaser may have at law.

Section 147 of the Saskatchewan Act provides that no action shall be commenced to enforce any of the foregoing rights more than:

- (a) in the case of an action for rescission, 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action; or
- (b) in the case of any other action, other than an action for rescission, the earlier of:
 - (i) one year after the plaintiff first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action; or
 - (ii) six years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

Section 80.1 of the Saskatchewan Act also provides a purchaser who has received an amended offering memorandum delivered in accordance with subsection 80.1(3) of the Saskatchewan Act, a right to withdraw from the agreement to purchase securities by delivering a notice to the person who or company that is selling the securities, indicating the purchaser's intention not to be bound by the purchase agreement, provided such notice is delivered by the purchaser within two Business Days of receiving the amended offering memorandum.

Rights for Purchasers in Manitoba

If the purchaser is resident in Manitoba and if this Offering Memorandum, together with any amendment thereto, contains a misrepresentation, each purchaser in Manitoba to whom the Offering Memorandum has been sent or delivered and who purchases Units, will be deemed to have relied upon such misrepresentation if it was a misrepresentation at the time of purchase, and the purchaser has a right of action for damages against the Fund, and, subject to certain additional defenses, against every director of the Fund acting on behalf of the Fund at the date of the Offering Memorandum and any person or company who signed the Offering Memorandum and any amendment thereto, but may elect instead to exercise a right of rescission against the Fund, in which case the purchaser will have no right of action for damages against the Fund or any other person or company who signed this Offering Memorandum, provided that, among other limitations:

in an action for rescission or damages, no person or company will be liable if it proves that the purchaser purchased the Units with knowledge of the misrepresentation;

- (b) in an action for damages, the Fund will not be held liable for all or any portion of the damages that it proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the Units as a result of the misrepresentation relied upon; and
- (c) in no case will the amount recoverable under the right of action described above exceed the price at which the Units were offered.

In addition, no person or company other than the Fund is liable if the person or company proves that:

- (a) this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto was sent or delivered to the purchaser without the person's or company's knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of its delivery, the person or company gave reasonable general notice that it was delivered without the person's or company's knowledge or consent;
- (b) after delivery of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto and before the purchase of the Units by the purchaser, on becoming aware of any misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum, the person or company withdrew the person's or company's consent to the Offering Memorandum, or any amendment thereto, and gave reasonable general notice of the withdrawal and the reason for it; or
- (c) with respect to any part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto purporting to be made on the authority of an expert, or to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, an opinion or a statement of an expert, the person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that: (i) there had been a misrepresentation, or (ii) the relevant part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto (A) did not fairly represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert, or (B) was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the report, opinion or statement of the expert.

In addition, no person or company other than the Fund is liable with respect to any part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, unless the person or company: (i) failed to conduct an investigation sufficient to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation; or (ii) believed that there had been a misrepresentation.

All or any one or more of the persons or companies that are found to be liable or accept liability in an action for damages are jointly and severally liable. A defendant who is found liable to pay a sum in damages may recover a contribution, in whole or in part, from a person who is jointly and severally liable to make the same payment in the same cause of action unless, in all circumstances of the case, the court is satisfied that it would not be just and equitable.

In addition, no action shall be commenced to enforce these rights more than:

- (a) in the case of an action for rescission, 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action; or
- (b) in the case of any action, other than an action for rescission, the earlier of: (i) 180 days after the date on which the purchaser first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action or (ii) two years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

The rights discussed above are in addition to and without derogation from any other right or remedy which purchasers may have at law and are intended to correspond to the provisions of the relevant securities legislation and are subject to the defenses contained therein.

Rights for Purchasers in Ontario

In accordance with Section 130.1 of the Securities Act (Ontario) (the "Ontario Act") in the event that this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto contains a misrepresentation (as defined in the Ontario Act), the purchaser who purchases Units offered by this Offering Memorandum during the period of distribution has, without regard to whether the

purchaser relied upon the misrepresentation, a right of action against the Fund for damages, or, while still the owner of the Units purchased by that purchaser, a right of rescission, except as provided below. If the purchaser exercises the right of rescission, the purchaser ceases to have a right of action for damages against the Fund.

The foregoing rights are subject to the following limitations:

- (a) the Fund will not be liable if it proves that the purchaser purchased the Units with knowledge of the misrepresentation;
- (b) in the case of an action for damages, the Fund will not be liable for all or any portion of the damages that it proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the Units as a result of the misrepresentation relied upon; and
- (c) in no case will the amount recoverable in any action exceed the price at which Units were sold to the purchaser.

No action shall be commenced to enforce these statutory rights more than:

- (a) in an action for rescission, 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action; or
- (b) in an action for damages, the earlier of:
 - (i) 180 days after the plaintiff first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action; or
 - (ii) three years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

The rights discussed above are in addition to and without derogation from any other rights or remedies available at law to the purchaser.

Rights for Purchasers in New Brunswick

The Securities Act (New Brunswick) (the "New Brunswick Act") provides that, subject to certain limitations, where this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto, which is provided to a purchaser of the Units contains an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made (a "misrepresentation"), a purchaser who purchases the Units shall be deemed to have relied on the misrepresentation if it was a misrepresentation at the time of purchase and the purchaser has, subject to certain defenses, a right of action for damages against the Fund or, while still the owner of the Units, may elect to exercise a right of rescission against the seller, in which case he shall have no right of action for damages, provided that:

- (a) in an action for rescission or damages, the defendant will not be liable if it proves that the purchaser purchased the security with knowledge of the misrepresentation;
- (b) in an action for damages, the defendant is not liable for all or any portion of the damages that it proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the security as a result of the misrepresentation relied upon; and
- (c) in no case shall the amount recoverable under the right of action described herein exceed the price at which the security was offered.

The right of action for rescission or damages described herein is conferred by section 150 of the New Brunswick Act and is in addition to and without derogation from any right the purchaser may have at law.

Pursuant to section 161 of the New Brunswick Act, no action shall be commenced to enforce a right of rescission unless such action is commenced not later than 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action and in

the case of any action, other than an action for rescission, such action shall be commenced before the earlier of: (i) one year after the plaintiff first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, and (ii) six years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

Rights for Purchasers in Nova Scotia

The Securities Act (Nova Scotia) provides that, subject to certain limitations, where this Offering Memorandum, together with any amendment thereto, or any advertising or sales literature (as such terms are defined in the Securities Act (Nova Scotia)) disseminated in connection with the offering, contains an untrue statement of material fact or omits to state a material fact that is necessary to prevent a statement in this Offering Memorandum, any amendment thereto or advertising or sales literature from being misleading in light of the circumstances in which the statement was made (each, a "Misrepresentation"), that was a Misrepresentation at the time of purchase, a purchaser who purchases Units has a right of action for damages against the Fund, subject to certain additional defenses, every seller (other than the Fund) of Units, any director of the Fund acting on behalf of the Fund and persons who have signed this Offering Memorandum.

Alternatively, where the purchaser purchased Units from the Fund, the purchaser may elect to exercise a right of rescission against the Fund in which case the purchaser shall have no right of action for damages against the seller or persons who have signed the Offering Memorandum.

The foregoing rights are subject to, among other limitations, the following:

- (a) no action shall be commenced to enforce any of the foregoing rights more than 120 days after the date on which the initial payment was made for the Units;
- (b) no person will be liable if it proves that the purchaser purchased the Units with knowledge of the Misrepresentation;
- (c) in the case of an action for damages, no person will be liable for all or any portion of the damages that it proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the Units as a result of the Misrepresentation relied upon; and
- (d) in no case will the amount recoverable in any action exceed the price at which the Units were offered under this Offering Memorandum or amendment thereto.

In addition, no person or company other than the Fund is liable if the person or company proves that:

- (a) this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto was sent or delivered to the purchaser without the person's or company's knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of its delivery, the person or company gave reasonable general notice that it was delivered without the person's or company's knowledge or consent;
- (b) after delivery of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto and before the purchase of the Units by the purchaser, on becoming aware of any Misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum, or amendment thereto, the person or company withdrew the person's or company's consent to this Offering Memorandum, or amendment thereto, and gave reasonable general notice of the withdrawal and the reason for it; or
- (c) with respect to any part this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto purporting to be made on the authority of an expert, or purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, an opinion or a statement of an expert, that person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that there had been a Misrepresentation, the part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto did not fairly represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert, or was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the report, opinion or statement of the expert.

Furthermore, no person or company other than the Fund is liable with respect to any part of this Offering Memorandum or any amendment thereto not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert; and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, unless the person or company (i) failed to conduct a reasonable investigation to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no Misrepresentation; or (ii) believed that there had been a Misrepresentation.

If a Misrepresentation is contained in a record incorporated by reference in, or deemed incorporated into, this Offering Memorandum or amendment thereto, the Misrepresentation is deemed to be contained in this Offering Memorandum or in any amendment thereto.

The rights of action for rescission or damages are in addition to and without derogation from any other right the purchaser may have at law.

Rights for Purchasers in Québec

Legislation has been adopted in Québec, but is not yet in force, that will provide the purchasers of Units with a statutory right to sue (if proclaimed in force). Until such time as this legislation is in force, in addition to any other right or remedy available to the purchasers of Units under ordinary civil liability rules, purchasers are granted the same rights of action for damages or rescission as purchasers in Ontario. If and when this legislation is in force, then purchasers of Units residing in the Province of Québec will no longer have the rights granted to purchasers in Ontario and the following will apply, in addition to any other right or remedy available to purchasers of Units residing in the Province of Québec under ordinary civil liability rules:

If there is a misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum, purchasers will have a statutory right to sue:

- (a) to cancel subscription agreement to buy the Units or to revise the price at which the Units were sold to the purchaser; and
- (b) for damages against the Fund, the Fund's directors and officers, the dealer(s) under contract to the Fund in connection with the sale of these Units and any expert whose opinion appears in this Offering Memorandum if such opinion contains a misrepresentation.

This statutory right to sue will be available to purchasers whether or not purchasers have relied on the Offering Memorandum. Purchasers will be able to elect to cancel their agreement to buy these Units or to bring an action to revise the price without prejudice to their claim for damages.

However, there will be various defences available to the persons that purchasers will have a right to sue. For example, they will have a defence if purchasers knew of the misrepresentation when they purchased the Units. In an action for damages, a person listed above, other than the Fund or the persons in charge of the Fund's patrimony, will not be liable if that person acted with prudence and diligence.

In addition, the defendant will not be liable for a misrepresentation in forward-looking information if the defendant proves that:

- (a) this Offering Memorandum contains, proximate to the forward-looking information, reasonable cautionary language identifying the forward-looking information as such, and identifying material factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from a conclusion, forecast or projection in the forward-looking information, and a statement of material factors or assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or making a forecast or projection; and
- (b) there was a reasonable basis for drawing the conclusion or making the forecasts and projections set out in the forward-looking information.

If purchasers of Units intend to rely on the rights described in (a) or (b) above, they will have to do so within strict time limitations. Purchasers will have to commence an action to cancel the agreement or revise the price within three years after

the date of the purchase. Purchasers will have to commence an action for damages within the earlier of (i) three years after they first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action (except on proof of tardy knowledge imputable to purchasers negligence) or (ii) five years after the filing of this Offering Memorandum with the AMF.

Rights for Purchasers in Prince Edward Island

For purchasers of Units resident in Prince Edward Island, if there is a misrepresentation in respect of the Fund in the Offering Memorandum or in any amendment hereto, the purchaser will have a right of action for damages against the Fund acting on behalf of the applicable Fund, every director of the Fund acting on behalf of the Fund at the date of the Offering Memorandum, and every person who signed the Offering Memorandum, but may elect to exercise a right of rescission against the Fund in respect of a Fund, in which case the purchaser shall have no right of action for damages against the Fund acting on behalf of the Fund, any such director of the Fund acting on behalf of the Fund or any such other person, provided that, among other limitations:

No action may be commenced to enforce a right of action more than:

- (a) in the case of an action for rescission, 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action; or
- (b) in the case of any action other than an action for rescission,
 - (i) 180 days after the plaintiff first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action, or
 - (ii) three years after the date of the transaction giving rise to the cause of action, whichever period expires first.

In an action for rescission or damages, the defendant will not be liable if it proves that the purchaser purchased the Units with knowledge of the misrepresentation.

In an action for damages, the defendant is not liable for any damages that it proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the Units resulting from the misrepresentation.

The amount recoverable under the right of action described herein must not exceed the price at which the Units purchased by the purchaser were offered.

No person other than the Fund acting on behalf of the Fund will be liable if the person proves that: (i) the Offering Memorandum was sent to the purchaser without the person's knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of its being sent, the person promptly gave reasonable notice to the Fund acting on behalf of the Fund that it had been sent without the person's knowledge and consent; (ii) the person, on becoming aware of the misrepresentation, had withdrawn the person's consent to the Offering Memorandum and had given reasonable notice to the Fund acting on behalf of the Fund of the withdrawal and the reason for it; or (iii) with respect to any part of the Offering Memorandum purporting to be made on the authority of an expert or to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, statement or opinion of an expert, the person had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that there had been a misrepresentation, or that the relevant part of the Offering Memorandum did not fairly represent the report, statement or opinion of the expert, or was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the report, statement or opinion of the expert.

No person other than the Fund acting on behalf of the Fund will be liable with respect to any part of the Offering Memorandum not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, statement or opinion of an expert, unless the person failed to conduct a reasonable investigation to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation, or believed that there had been a misrepresentation;

A person will not be liable for a misrepresentation in forward-looking information if:

(a) the Offering Memorandum contains, proximate to the forward looking information, reasonable cautionary language identifying the forward looking information as such, and identifying material factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from a conclusion, forecast or projection in the forward looking information, and a statement of material factors or assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or making a forecast or projection set out in the forward looking information; and

(b) the person or company had a reasonable basis for drawing the conclusions or making the forecasts or projections set out in the forward looking information; and

If a misrepresentation is contained in a record incorporated by reference in, or deemed to be incorporated into, the Offering Memorandum, the misrepresentation is deemed to be contained in the Offering Memorandum.

Rights for Purchasers in Newfoundland and Labrador

The Securities Act (Newfoundland and Labrador) provides a contractual right of action against an issuer for rescission or damages to every purchaser of securities to whom an offering memorandum (such as this Offering Memorandum) has been delivered by or on behalf of the seller of securities referred to in the offering memorandum if the offering memorandum contains a misrepresentation. This contractual right of action is exercisable on notice given to the issuer not later than 90 days after the date on which payment was made for the securities or after the initial payment, where payments after the initial payment are made under a contractual commitment assumed before, or concurrently with, the initial payment. A person or company is not liable for misrepresentation where he or she proves that the purchaser purchased the securities with knowledge of the misrepresentation.

Rights for Purchasers in British Columbia

Investors in British Columbia are granted the same rights of action for damages or rescission as residents of Ontario who purchase Units.

The rights summarized above are in addition to and without derogation from any other rights or remedy which investors may have at law.

DIRECTORY

Additional information as to the Fund and its advisors and agents:

Office of the Fund:

300 St-Sacrement Street, Suite 320 Montreal, Quebec H2Y 1X4

Manager:

MAJESTIC ASSET MANAGEMENT LLC 300 Saint-Sacrement Street, Suite 320 Montreal, Quebec, H2Y 1X4

Tel: (514) 281-4099 Fax: (514) 285-9089

Email: info@majesticassetmanagement.com

Administrator and Registrar:

SGGG FUND SERVICES INC. 121, King Street West, Suite 300 Toronto (Ontario) M5E 3T9

Attention: Client Service Department – Fund Services

Tel: (416) 967-0038 Fax: (416) 967-1969

Auditors:

KPMG s.r.l./S.E.N.C.R.L. Tour KPMG, Suite 1500 600, Maisonneuve Ouest Blvd. Montreal, Quebec, H3A 0A3

Tel: (514) 840-2608 Fax: (514) 840-2666

Legal Counsel:

FASKEN MARTINEAU DUMOULIN LLP Stock Exchange Tower, Suite 3700 800 Place Victoria Montreal, Quebec, H4Z 1E9

Tel: (514) 397-7400 Fax: (514) 397-7600